
    

AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
          March 21, 2016 

442 N. Cedar Lake Road 
To Follow the Regular Board Meeting 

The Regular Board Meeting is 7:00 P.M. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

1. ROLL CALL 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

2.1 Approve the Minutes of the Committee of the Whole Meeting of February 29, 2016 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

4. COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
 

 Community Development  
 Clerk’s Office 
 Human Resources and Finance 
 Public Works, Facilities and Capital Assets, and Engineering 

o Permission to Sell Kubota Tractor & Attachments at Auction 
o Lake County Municipal League Contracts: 

 Crack Seal, Street Sweep, Pavement Marking, Hydrant Painting 
o Preliminary Design Engineering Report for Second CLCJAWA Receiving Structure 

 Special Events 
 Building and Zoning 
 Police 
 Administration 

o Water & Sewer Code Changes Section 3.04.130 – Water and Sewer Rates 
o Capital Improvements Program Discussion  
o 2017 Budget Draft Presentation  

 
5. SUGGESTED NEW TOPICS 

 
6. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
7. ADJOURN  

 
 
 
 



    

 

MINUTES 
VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
February 29, 2016 

442 N. Cedar Lake Road 
To Follow the Regular Board Meeting 

The Regular Board Meeting is 7:00 P.M. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING OF THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE WAS 
CALLED TO ORDER BY TRUSTEE DONALD NEWBY, AT 7:26 P.M. 
 
Trustee Newby stated that the Mayor regretted that he is unable to attend tonight’s meeting and then 
asked for a motion to appoint someone as Pro-Tem in the Mayors absence 
 
Motion by Trustee Frye, Seconded by Trustee Foy to Appoint Trustee Newby as Pro-tem Village 
President.  
 

Upon the call of the roll, the following voted: 
Ayes:  Trustees Foy, Frye, Kraly, Rodriguez, Triphahn 
Nays:  None 
Abstain: Trustee Newby 
Absent: None 

 
Mayor Pro-tem Newby Declared the Motion carried 

 
1. ROLL CALL 

Present: Trustees Foy, Frye, Kraly, Newby, Rodriguez, Triphahn 
Absent: None 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

2.1 Approve the Minutes of the Committee of the Whole Meeting of February 16, 2016 
Trustee Foy moved, Seconded by Trustee Triphahn, to approve the Minutes of the 
Committee of the Whole Meeting of February 16, 2016. Under discussion Trustee Kraly 
stated he would be abstaining from the vote, the remaining board members had a 
unanimous voice vote; the Pro-tem Mayor declared the motion carried 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT 
NONE 

 
4. COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

 
 Community Development  
 Clerk’s Office 
 Human Resources and Finance 

o Copier Lease Agreements 
Finance Director Frerichs stated that the Village current agreement with Konica 
Minolta will expire March 2016.  Staff is recommending entering into a new lease 
agreement for 2 new copiers, including an additional cost for service, maintenance, 

2.1 Draft 



COTW Minutes February 29, 2015 Page 2 

 

supplies and cost per copy.   Three copiers that have reached the end of their useful 
life will be eliminated. Staff also received costs form Conon, however, they were 
higher than the Konica amounts.    
 

The Pro-Tem Mayor and Board agreed to move to the next Consent Agenda 
 

 Public Works, Facilities and Capital Assets, and Engineering 
o Urban Forest Management Plan Update 

Public Works Director, Adam Wedoff, recommended the Village Urban Forest 
Management Program be updated.  Updates include revising short term goals to focus 
on dead tree removals, change to the cost sharing program and the list of potential 
replacement trees have been changed to increase tree diversity in the Village.  
 
  The Pro-Tem Mayor and Board agreed to move to the next Consent Agenda 
 

o Parkway Trees Removal 
PWD Wedoff recommended entering into a contract with Sawvell tree Service to 
remove Village owned Ash Trees located in parkways. The balance remaining in the 
tree replacement fund was intended to be used in conjunction with an Illinois 
Department of Natural Resources grant however; staff was informed that the grant 
money could not be given out until the State approved a budget.  With no indication 
of when a budget will be approve by the state, staff is recommending using the 
remaining funds in this fiscal year for tree removals and using funds from the next 
fiscal year for the grant when funds become available. Staff is also recommending 
having Sawvell Tree Service as the sole source contractor for this work. They 
completed the hazard tree removals for the Village in the summer of 2015 and worked 
in union with Ivanhoe Nursery on the 2013-2014 tree replacement program contracts. 
Their work had been satisfactory in both instances. The trees to be removed will be in 
the Valley Lakes subdivision as they have the highest concentration of ash trees 
behind the Parkview Subdivision, which is slated for the IDNR grant program 
 

The Pro-Tem Mayor and Board agreed to move to the next Consent Agenda 
 

 Special Events 
 Building and Zoning 
 Police 

o Retail Theft Ordinance Revision 
Police Chief Gillette proposed a revision the Village Code to Include Retail Theft as a 
section of the Village Ordinance of Chapter 9.20, Theft and Related Offenses, stating 
that currently the Village does not have a Retail Theft Code on the books. The Chief 
also stated that any merchant who has reasonable grounds to believe that a person has 
committed retail theft, may detain such person with the addition of the Ordinance.  
 

The Pro-Tem Mayor and Board agreed to move to the next Consent Agenda 
 

o Title 10 Vehicles and Traffic Ordinance Revision 
Police Chief Gillette proposed a revision to the Village Code to include Chapter 10-
07, Pedestrians, as a section of the Village Ordinance Title 10 Vehicles and Traffic. 
With the addition of this section the Chief stated that pedestrians crossing the 
roadway other than a crosswalk could incur a fine, not less than twenty five dollars 



COTW Minutes February 29, 2015 Page 3 

 

($25.00) or more than seven hundred fifty dollars ($750.00) for each offense, 
depending on the Judge  

 Administration 
o Corner Garage – Groundwater Use Ordinance 

Village Administrator Shields stated that Corner Garage, located at 233 West 
Washington Street recently removed underground storage tanks and the owners of the 
property is requesting the Village pass an ordinance, which was supplied, which 
prohibits the use of groundwater in a defined area near the location, as a source of 
potable water. He went on to state that the ordinance is necessary for Corner Garage 
to acquire a No Further Remediation letter (NFR) from the Illinois Environmental 
Protection Agency (IEPA).  The Board requested our Environmental Attorney to 
provide notice of the contamination to Corner Garages neighbors prior to passing the 
ordinance.  
 

5. SUGGESTED NEW TOPICS 
None 
 

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
None 

 
7. ADJOURN  

 
Motion by Trustee Triphahn, Seconded by Trustee Frye to adjourn the Committee of the Whole 
meeting at 7:50 P.M. Upon a unanimous voice vote, the Mayor declared the motion carried.  
 
APPROVED:  
 
 
__________________________    _________________________ 
Patricia C. Blauvelt     Daniel MacGillis 
Village Clerk     Village President 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE: PUBLIC WORKS SURPLUS ITEMS Agenda Item No.  COTW  

 
Executive Summary

 
Staff is requesting permission to sell a model year 2000 Kubota LA-681 garden tractor with front 
bucket and mower and plow blade attachments at auction on April 9th.  The engine runs fine but 
the power take-off and three point rear hitch no longer work.  The front bucket is also cracked and 
in need of repair.  The tractor is currently used to till the community gardens in the spring, 
provide hay rides at the Tree Lighting Festival, install shoulder gravel and mow areas of grass in 
violation of Village ordinances.  A tractor can be rented to till the gardens and provide hay rides.  
A plow truck or skid steer can complete shoulder gravel work and the Village owns two John 
Deere riding lawn mowers that can be used for violation mowing.  
 
Staff contacted a repair facility about the tractor repairs and they informed us that it would take at 
least 18 hours of labor to take the tractor apart in order to find the problem and then put it back 
together which doesn’t include the time to do the actual repair.  Staff feels the cost of repairing 
the tractor is not justified for what the department uses it for. 

Recommended Action
 
Allow the Public Works Department to sell the above listed items at auction.   

 

Committee: PW/F&CA and Engineering Meeting Date(s): 03/21/16 

 

Lead Department: Public Works Presenter:  Adam Wedoff, Director of Public Works   

 

 

Item Budgeted:       Yes       No     X   N/A 

 

 

If amount requested is over budget, a detailed 
explanation of what account(s) the overage will 
be charged to will be provided in the Executive 
Summary or attached detail. 

 

 

Account(s) Budget Expenditure
Other Items $0.00

Item Requested $0.00 $0.00
YTD Actual $0.00
Amount Encumbered $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

Under
Over

Request is over/under budget:
-
-

 
 





 







































































































































































































































































 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE: SECOND CLCJAWA RECEIVING STRUCTURE DESIGN 

REPORT 
Agenda Item No.  COTW  

 
Executive Summary

 
Staff is recommending a work order submitted by Baxter & Woodman, Inc. to complete a 
preliminary design report for a second CLCJAWA receiving station be approved.  As a part of the 
new West Group expansion line serving Volo and Wauconda, CLCJAWA has agreed to provide a 
second connection point to the Village.  In order to take advantage of this, the Village is required 
to build a receiving structure to tie into the transmission main.  This second connection will 
provide added redundancy to the Village’s water supply and better water pressure in the southern 
areas of the Village.  Baxter & Woodman will incorporate this new connection point to update the 
Village’s water system model along with a proposed additional water tower and possible future 
developments.  They will provide findings and recommendations for design parameters, proposed 
site locations and piping routes as well as probable costs for design and construction of the 
needed improvements. 
 
This report will not include a final design of the receiving structure or any other improvements. 
 
Baxter & Woodman has submitted a work order detailing the scope of services with a fee not to 
exceed $25,900. 

Recommended Action
 
Approve a work order from Baxter & Woodman to complete a second CLCJAWA receiving station report. 

 

Committee: PW/F&CA and Engineering Meeting Date(s): 03/21/16 

 

Lead Department: Public Works Presenter:  Adam Wedoff, Director of Public Works   

 

 

Item Budgeted:    X   Yes        No        N/A 

 

 

If amount requested is over budget, a detailed 
explanation of what account(s) the overage will 
be charged to will be provided in the Executive 
Summary or attached detail. 

 

 

Account(s) Budget Expenditure
Other Items $1,088,120.00

Item Requested $65,000.00 $25,900.00
YTD Actual $204,773.02
Amount Encumbered $0.00

50-60-81-88101 $1,153,120.00 $230,673.02

Under
Over

Request is over/under budget:
$922,446.98

-

 









V:\Meeting Packets\Departments - Admin, Finance, PD, PW\AIS - Agenda Item Summary\Administration\3-21-
16\03.21.16 Sewer Rates.doc 

 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE:  SEWER RATES Agenda Item No.  COTW 

 
Executive Summary:

 
In October of 2015 the Village received a notice of sewer rate and connection fee increases letter 
from Lake County Public Works. Effective January 1, 2016 the fees increased from $3.51 to 
$3.67/1,000 gallons. The fees were implemented in the Village’s software system, but staff did 
not update the Village Code at that time. Staff is recommending that the rate tables for regional 
wastewater service charges be eliminated and general language regarding rates established by the 
agency be added. Attached is a draft ordinance reflecting the changes described above. 
 
 
 

 Recommended Action:
 
Adopt an Ordinance Amending the Village Code Relating to Water and Sewer Rates 
 

Committee: - Meeting Date: March 21, 2016 

Lead Department:  Administration Presenter: Steven J. Shields, Village Administrator  

 

Item Budgeted:    -  Yes    -  No   X    N/A 

 

 
If amount requested is over budget, a detailed 
explanation of what account(s) the overage 
will be charged to will be provided in the 
Executive Summary or attached detail. 

Account(s) Budget Expenditure
xx-xx-xx-xxxxx -

Item Requested
Y-T-D Actual
Amount Encumbered

Total: $0.00 $0.00

Under
Over -

-
Request is over/under budget:

 
 
 





   

ORDINANCE NO.    
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE VILLAGE CODE 
RELATING TO WATER AND SEWER RATES 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as 
follows: 
 
SECTION ONE: That Section 13.04.130 – Water and sewer rates, is hereby further amended 
with deletions shown in strike through text and additions shown in bold, underlined text, so that 
the same shall be read as follows: 
 
13.04.130 - Water and sewer rates. 
There shall be and there are established rates or charges for the use of and service supplied by 
the combined waterworks and sewerage system of the village, based upon the amount of water 
consumed, as shown by the water meters or as minimum charges, as follows:  
A. Water and Sewer: Within the Corporate Limits. 

1. Water and Sewer Service Charges per Month. Water use shall be billed monthly. For 
each single-family residential, commercial, industrial or municipal user of the water 
service of the combined waterworks and sewerage system of the village, within the 
corporate limits, classified for billing every month, the charges for all users shall 
begin at the time the service is first rendered and will be revised on the effective 
date as listed in Table 13.04.130.1 below:  
 

Table 13.04.130.1  
November 1, 2010 $3.24/1,000 gal 
November 1, 2011 $3.37/1,000 gal 
November 1, 2012 $3.50/1,000 gal 
November 1, 2013 $3.64/1,000 gal 
November 1, 2014 $3.79/1,000 gal 

 
2. The minimum charge for water and sewer service billed for all users shall begin at 

the time the service is first rendered and will be revised on the effective date as 
listed in Table 13.04.130.2 below, provided that one dollar ($1.00) of such charge 
shall be waived as to applicants having qualified for a senior utility tax rebated 
under Section 3.20.030 of this code.  
 

Table 13.04.130.2  
November 1, 2010 $4.39 
November 1, 2011 $5.39 
November 1, 2012 $6.39 
November 1, 2013 $6.71 
November 1, 2014 $7.04 



 2

B. Water: Outside the Corporate Limits. Each user of the water service located outside the 
corporate limits of the village shall have fifty (50) percent added to the bill rendered for 
the type of service as set out in this section.  
 

C. Central Lake County Joint Action Water Agency Water Service Charge. In addition to 
the rates described in this section, there is established for each user for water service 
charges by the Central Lake County joint action water agency, beginning at the time that 
service is first rendered at the rate from time to time charged to the village by the Central 
Lake County joint action water agency. 

 
D. Regional Wastewater Service Charge. 

 
1.   In addition to the rates described in this section, there is established for each 

Residential Customer Equivalent ("R.C.E.") for sewage treatment and disposal by 
the appropriate sewage disposal agency, beginning at the time that service is first 
rendered at the rate from time to time charged to the Village by the regional 
agency. beginning at a time that service is first rendered and as of the following 
dates:  

   

March 1, 2008 $3.31/1,000 gal $26.48/month/R.C.E. 
March 1, 2009 $3.41/1,000 gal $27.28/month/R.C.E. 
March 1, 2010 $3.51/1,000 gal $28.08/month/R.C.E. 
 
In the application of such charges, each single-family residence shall be classified as one R.C.E. 
Each commercial, industrial and institutional user shall be charged on the basis of the number of 
R.C.E.'s applicable to the user. For the purpose of this section, a residential customer equivalent 
is considered as the use of seven thousand five hundred (7,500) gallons per month (fifteen 
thousand (15,000) gallons per bi-monthly period) for average strength sewage wastes and shall 
be billed to each commercial, industrial and institutional sewerage customer or user at the rates 
listed in this section per thousand gallons of usage. A surcharge may be imposed for wastes 
greater in strength than average strength sewage as defined in an agreement with the Lake 
County public works department or the applicable sewage disposal agency. 
 
SECTION TWO:  That the Village Clerk is directed hereby to publish this Ordinance in 
pamphlet form, pursuant to the Statutes of the State of Illinois. 
 
SECTION THREE:  That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage, approval, and publication in the manner provided by law. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3

       APPROVED: 
 
              
       Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk 
 
PASSED: 
APPROVED: 
AYES: 
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
 



V:\Meeting Packets\Departments - Admin, Finance, PD, PW\AIS - Agenda Item Summary\Administration\3-21-
16\03.21.16 Capital Improvements Plan.doc 

 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE:  CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN Agenda Item No.  COTW 

 
Executive Summary:

 
Attached is the Capital Improvements Plan that includes all department capital item requests for 
the 2017 budget and for five years thereafter, ending in 2022. The plan provides for a procedure 
and structure for managing capital requirements for the Village and the implementation of a 
financial forecast for the requested capital needs. The document contains capital requests 
summaries by departments and funds and also includes the individual capital requests by 
department.  
 
 
 

 Recommended Action:
 
Review and Discuss the Round Lake Capital Improvement Plan Fiscal Year End 2017 - 2022. 
 

Committee: - Meeting Date: March 21, 2016 

Lead Department:  Administration Presenter: Steven J. Shields, Village Administrator  

 

Item Budgeted:    -  Yes    -  No   X    N/A 

 

 
If amount requested is over budget, a detailed 
explanation of what account(s) the overage 
will be charged to will be provided in the 
Executive Summary or attached detail. 

Account(s) Budget Expenditure
xx-xx-xx-xxxxx -

Item Requested
Y-T-D Actual
Amount Encumbered

Total: $0.00 $0.00

Under
Over -

-
Request is over/under budget:

 
 
 













































































































































































































1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-R-XX 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 
 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FISCAL YEAR END 2017 THROUGH 2022 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Finance Director in conjunction with the recommendations 

of all Village Departments and the Committee of the Whole’s review and recommendations has 

developed a comprehensive assessment of current and future long-term capital project needs and 

requirements for the Village of Round Lake, hereafter referenced as the “Village of Round Lake 

Capital Plan Fiscal Year End 2017 Through 2022”; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees deems the “Village of Round Lake Capital Plan 

Fiscal Year End 2017 Through 2022” appropriate for adoption by the Village for present and 

future use for capital planning and implementation of capital projects by Village Staff, 

Departments and all other planning agencies and committees of the Village. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 

OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as 

follows: 

 SECTION 1: That the “Village of Round Lake Capital Plan Fiscal Year End 2017 

Through 2022” as attached hereto is hereby adopted as stating and encompassing Village policy 

and guidelines for present and future capital plans within the Village as therein specified. 

 SECTION 2: That as set out in the “Village of Round Lake Capital Plan Fiscal Year 

End 2017 Through 2022”, the Board states the policy that such Capital Plan shall be the 

continuing guideline for the stated Capital Plan projects, their financing, implementation and 

completion, provided nothing herein is intended to constitute a pre-approval or formal 

authorization by the Board of Trustees for any capital project, or funding or expenditures for 

such projects. 



2 
 

 

 APPROVED: 

 
             
      Daniel A. MacGillis, Village President 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
Patricia C. Blauvelt, Village Clerk 
 
 

PASSED: 

APPROVED: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 
 
 
 
   



V:\Meeting Packets\Departments - Admin, Finance, PD, PW\AIS - Agenda Item Summary\Administration\3-21-
16\03.21.16 2017 Draft Budget.doc 

 

VILLAGE OF ROUND LAKE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

TITLE:  2017 DRAFT BUDGET AND ASSUMPTIONS Agenda Item No.  COTW 

 
Executive Summary:

 
The attached memorandum provides an overview of the 2017 budget draft along with 
assumptions used for compiling the data in the budget document. The memorandum is divided 
into three main areas; major revenues, expenses, and specific funds. In addition, Appendix A 
lists all accounts by fund comparing the 2017 budget to the 2016 budget with dollar and percent 
changes. 
 
 
 
 

 Recommended Action:
 
Review and Discuss the Village of Round Lake Draft 2017 Budget. 

Committee: - Meeting Date: March 21, 2016 

Lead Department:  Administration Presenter: Steven J. Shields, Village Administrator  

 

Item Budgeted:    -  Yes    -  No   X    N/A 

 

 
If amount requested is over budget, a detailed 
explanation of what account(s) the overage 
will be charged to will be provided in the 
Executive Summary or attached detail. 

Account(s) Budget Expenditure
xx-xx-xx-xxxxx -

Item Requested
Y-T-D Actual
Amount Encumbered

Total: $0.00 $0.00

Under
Over -

-
Request is over/under budget:

 
 
 



Village of Round Lake 
442 North Cedar Lake Road Round Lake, IL  60073 

847-546-5400 fax 847-546-5405 
www.eroundlake.com 

 
 

 
 
March 21, 2016 
 
   
To:       Mayor and Board of Trustees 
    
From:    Steven J. Shields, Village Administrator 
     
Subject:   2017 Budget Draft & Assumptions 
 
This memorandum provides an overview of the 2017 budget draft along with assumptions used 
for compiling the data in the budget document. This document is divided into three main areas; 
major revenues, expenses, and specific funds. In addition, Appendix A lists all accounts by fund 
comparing the 2017 budget to the 2016 budget with dollar and percent changes.  
 
A change from previous years, budget books were compiled for Department Heads, the Village 
Administrator and one for the Public only. The budget books contain the detailed information 
that is abridged in this memorandum. The books contain a one-page overview of all funds, a 
detail section by fund that includes highlights, a budget comparison summary, and detailed 
budget information by account. Also included are the major revenues analysis, financial 
forecasts, and the 2017 through 2022 capital improvements plan. 
 
Major Revenues  
 
General Fund 
 
The table below lists the major revenue sources for the General Fund. Historically, the nine (9) 
revenue sources account for approximately 95% of the General Fund revenues. 
 

Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget 
Description 2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 

Real Estate Taxes $2,974,339 $2,983,396 $3,068,769 $3,093,488  $3,120,745 
Road & Bridge Tax $56,957 $59,139 $58,410 $62,765  $60,000 
State Use Tax $312,211 $352,192 $354,807 $406,016  $429,792 
Sales Tax $469,299 $494,977 $500,000 $494,044  $500,000 
State Income tax $1,768,456 $1,775,961 $1,810,611 $1,920,345  $1,865,478 
Building Permits $119,672 $91,087 $52,500 $53,500  $52,500 
Garbage Fees $553,405 $593,947 $600,000 $605,957  $605,000 
Circuit Court Fines $152,724 $120,946 $115,000 $129,162  $125,000 
Cable/Video Franchise  $232,075 $253,197 $255,000 $272,566  $265,000 

     Total $6,639,138 $6,724,842 $6,815,097 $7,037,843  $7,023,515 

 



2017 Budget Draft      Page 2 
 

$3,180,745 

$52,500 

$2,795,270 
$605,000 

$125,000 

$265,000 

General Fund Major Revenues by Category

Real Estate Taxes

Licenses & Permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for Services

Forfeitures & Fines

Franchise Fees

The above chart shows the heavy reliance on property and income tax to support general services 
of the Village. 
 
The graph that follows lists the major revenues by category, with property taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues representing 71.00% of the total major revenues in the General 
Fund. 
 

 
The following major revenues are listed along with the assumptions used for the 2017 budget 
amount. 
 
  Type             Assumption 
Real Estate Taxes Anticipated extension of $3,152,268 X 99% collection rate 
Road & Bridge Tax 2015 Road & Bridge levy of $63,019 (assumed same levy as 2014) 
State Use Tax IML estimate of $23.50 per capita 
Sales Tax Current year estimate of $494,044, 1% growth, rounded to $500,000 
State Income tax IML estimate of $102.00 per capita 
Building Permits Used same $52,500 budget as last year - miscellaneous permits only 
Garbage Fees Current year estimate of $605,957, no growth 
Circuit Court Fines Current year estimate of $129,162, no growth, lowered to $125,000 
Cable/Video Franchise  Current year estimate of $272,566, no growth , lowered to $265,000 

 
Below is the percentage breakdown of a typical Round Lake property tax bill (Avon Township) 
for 2014 property taxes received in the 2016 budget year.  Historically, approximately 10% of 
the tax bill relates to the Village of Round Lake.   
 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft      Page 3 
 

 
 
The chart below shows the previous five (5) years tax extensions along with the 2015 estimated 
levy. As shown by the graph, the overall tax levy has never been over the highest levy of 
$3,623,378 for tax year 2010. At the same time the Police Pension levy as a percent of the total 
levy has increased from 8.75% for the 2010 levy to 12.66% for the 2014 levy.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

4.38%

1.35%

9.39%

7.79%

4.55%

5.40%

0.36%63.98%

1.96%
1.22%

2013 Property Tax Rates

County of Lake

Forest Preserve

Village of Round Lake

Fire Protection District

Library District

Park District

Joint Action Water Agency

School District(s)

College Of Lake County #532

Township/Township R&B

$316,922 

$396,020 $429,174 $500,525 
$450,002 $456,195 

$2,500,000

$2,700,000

$2,900,000

$3,100,000

$3,300,000

$3,500,000

$3,700,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Anticipated

Property Taxes (Year of Levy)

Police Pension

General Fund



2017 Budget Draft      Page 4 
 
Debt Service Funds 
 
There are four major revenues in the Debt Service Funds that have historically accounted for an 
estimated 99% of the total revenues. The table below lists the major revenue sources for the Debt 
Service Funds. 
 

Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget 
Description 2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 

Utility Tax Electric $370,458 $354,300 $355,000 $345,705  $345,000 
Utility Tax - Gas  $121,416 $94,901 $117,500 $94,901  $95,000 
Utility Tax Telephone $330,485 $262,943 $255,000 $262,466  $260,000 
Transfers From General $350,000 $475,000 $525,000 $525,000  $525,000 

     Total $1,172,359 $1,187,144 $1,252,500 $1,228,072  $1,225,000 

 
The following major revenues are listed along with the assumptions used for the 2016 budget 
amount. 
 
 Type    Assumption 
Utility Tax Electric Current year estimate of $345,705, no growth 
Utility Tax - Gas (1) Used current year estimate of $189,802, no growth 
Utility Tax Telephone Used current year estimate of $262,466, no growth 
Transfers From General Used $525,000, same as the prior year 

 
The gas utility tax is allocated between the debt service and capital projects. The fiscal year end 
2017 budget splits the utility tax 50/50 between both fund types.  
 
Water & Sewer Fund 
 
There are three major revenues in the Water & Sewer Fund that historically have accounted for 
over 93% of the total budgeted revenues. The amounts and the assumptions for each are as 
follows: 
 
 Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget 

Description 2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 

Village Fees $1,694,031 $1,764,635 $1,775,000 $1,822,594  $1,790,000 
Water Fees $907,647 $911,882 $950,000 $926,808  $975,000 
Sewer Fees $1,114,085 $1,106,852 $1,100,000 $1,129,616  $1,150,000 

     Total $3,715,763 $3,783,369 $3,825,000 $3,879,018  $3,915,000 

 
  Type       Assumption 
Village Fees Average consumption x current rates in effect 
Water Fees 5 year average consumption X JAWA $2.75 estimated rate 
Sewer Fees 5 year average consumption X rate of $3.67 per thousand 

 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft      Page 5 
 
The chart below shows the actual water and sewer consumption for the past five years and the 
average consumption over the same period. As the graph indicates usage has remained relatively 
flat, with the exception of fiscal year end 2013 due to the very dry summer of 2012.  
 

 
 
Other Major Revenue Sources 
 
The two remaining major revenue sources include the commuter parking lot receipts and motor 
fuel tax received from the state on a per capita basis. The amounts and the assumptions for each 
are as follows: 
 

Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget 
Description 2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 

Motor Fuel Tax $449,251 $439,391 $435,278 $461,056  $473,685 
Commuter Parking $86,166 $84,492 $84,000 $75,555  $75,000 
 
  Type       Assumption 
Motor Fuel Tax IML estimate of $25.90 per capita 
Commuter Parking Used current year estimate of $75,555, no growth 

 
Other Revenue Information 
 
The five-year financial forecasts, fiscal year end 2018 through 2022 budget, include revenues flat 
or increasing 1.5% over the five-year time frame. 
 
 

310,000

320,000

330,000

340,000

350,000

360,000

370,000

380,000

2011
Actual

2012
Actual

2013
Actual

2014
Actual

2015
Actual

Consumption 

Water Consumption Sewer Consumption

Water Consumption Average Sewer Consumption Average



2017 Budget Draft      Page 6 
 
Expenses 
 
Overall, when there is no specific information or other data, the budget year 2017 expenses will 
be either forecasted flat or with a 1.5% increase, consistent with the current year. The following 
are specific assumptions that are utilized in the budget and in the long-term forecast. 
 
Personnel Related Expenses 

 3.0% COLA increase May 1st and 3.5% step increase on anniversary date  
o Public Works contract: 2.75% COLA increase May 1st and 3.5% step 
o Police contracts: 3.0% COLA and normal step increases 

 IMRF – January 2016 rate 10.27%, January 2017 rate used 10.50% 
 Insurance:  

o Health – 15% increase 2017, 10.0% forecasted 
o Dental – 7.5% increase 2017, 7.5% forecasted 
o Life – 5.0% increase 2017, 3.0% forecasted 
o Vision – 0.0% increase 2017, 3.0% forecasted 

 
Nearly 60.00% of the General Fund expenses are related to payroll and personnel related items. 
 
Other Expense Items 

 Risk Management – 15% increase for workers compensation and liability insurance in 
2017, thereafter, forecasted at 10% overall.  The last four risk management premium 
increases have averaged 11.84%. 

 All other expenses mainly used a 1.5% increase or flat depending on the type of account  
 
Other Assumptions/Details 

 Service reductions: currently – none 

 Staffing levels stay the same as they currently exist 
o One Human Resources Position was added  
o One Public Works Maintenance II  position was eliminated 

 Staffing levels stay the same as they currently exist 

 30% operating reserve for most funds 

 Carry-over costs/revenue for on-going projects 

 Studies were added that reflect management’s overall vision evaluation (MOVE) 
memorandum presented to the Village Board in November 2015. 

Fund Status 
 
Below are the charts providing historical and projected fund status for the General Fund, Special 
Revenue, Debt Service, Capital, Enterprise, and Fiduciary Fund types.  The information that 
follows has the same format per fund type. Each area defines the fund, lists the major revenues 
and expenses, has a comment section, and provides graphs for the direction the fund is 
potentially heading with revenue, expense and cash balance trending. Where applicable 
additional information was provided so the reader has a better understanding of any highlights or 
issues the fund may have. 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft      Page 7 
 

 
Summary of All Funds 

 
Estimated Estimated 
5/1/2016 Operating Capital Debt Srv. & 4/30/2017 
Cash & Operating Operating Surplus/ With Replacement Cash & 

Fund Types Investments Revenues Expenses (Deficit) Carryovers Funding Investments 
General Fund $5,814,148  $7,342,115 $7,238,639 $103,476 $189,500  ($1,217,374) $4,510,750 
Special Revenue $927,630  $668,787 $32,350 $636,437 $1,252,480  $0 $311,587 
Debt Service $132,041  $710,013 $1,244,186 ($534,173) $0  $525,000 $122,868 
Capital Projects  $1,388,517  $100,139 $35,500 $64,639 $857,860  $325,000 $920,296 
Enterprise $7,295,215  $4,247,729 $3,877,851 $369,878 $3,416,031  ($139,674) $4,109,388 
Internal Service $645,184  $15,065 $0 $15,065 $792,723  $507,048 $374,574 
Fiduciary $6,188,494  $779,014 $449,221 $329,793 $0  $0 $6,518,287 
  Total All Funds $22,391,229  $13,862,862 $12,877,747 $985,115 $6,508,594  $0 $16,867,750 

 
General Fund 

 
The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Village. It is used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The chart below 
shows overall totals for the General Fund. 
 

Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast 
Description 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Operating Revenues $7,342,115 $7,418,866 $7,530,114 $7,643,093  $7,757,830 $7,874,352 
Operating Expenditures 7,238,639 7,361,008 7,650,523 7,939,640  8,235,800 8,549,636 
Excess (Deficiency) $103,476 $57,858 ($120,408) ($296,546) ($477,970) ($675,284) 
Capital Outlay $189,500 $26,000 $106,000 $106,000  $11,000 $11,000 
Bonds & Replacement Funding $1,217,374 $1,250,335 $1,283,472 $1,312,377  $1,316,478 $1,320,783 

Net Inflow (Outflow) ($1,303,398) ($1,218,477) ($1,509,880) ($1,714,924) ($1,805,448) ($2,007,067) 

 
The chart above shows that the Village is covering operating expenses with operating revenues 
until 2019. However, with bond servicing and replacement funding in each year there is a total 
outflow. Bond servicing and replacement funding are monies moved to other Village funds to 
support such activities in those funds. 
 
General Fund Revenues 
 
Major Revenue Sources: See revenue section of this memorandum  
Comments: Approximately 85% of the General Fund revenues are from property taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues. 
 
The Following graph shows the total revenue budgeted in the General Fund: 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft      Page 8 
 

 
 

 2017 budgeted revenues of $7,342,115 are $148,056 (or 2.06%) higher than the 2016 
budgeted revenues of $7,194,059. A few highlights include:  

o Real estate taxes are projected at $3,120,745 which is an increase of $51,976, or 
1.69%.  The increase is the result of two items: the 2016 budget estimate was low 
and the Village Board approved a 2015 tax levy increase of 0.80%. 

o State use tax increased $74,985 based on the IML 2017 per capita projection of 
$23.50 versus the per capita amount of $19.40 used in the 2016 budget. 

o State income tax increased $54,867 based on the IML 2017 per capita projection 
of $102.00 versus the per capita amount of $99.00 used in the 2016 budget.  

o Video gaming tax increased $22,000 based on current trends. 
o The labor/Equipment Reimbursement MFT account decreased $25,000 as the 

MFT Fund is now only used for capital projects, thus the account was eliminated. 
o Circuit court fines increased $10,000 due to 2016 trends of $129,162, adding no 

growth for the 2017 budget.  
o Miscellaneous receipts decreased $35,000 as the 2016 budget of $29,250 for salt 

usage through Round Lake School District #116 was eliminated from the budget. 
o AT&T video franchise fees increased $10,200 based on current year trends. 
o The recycling rebate SWALCO decreased $14,500 as commodity prices have 

plunged leaving no margins for any revenues to be generated and paid to the 
Village.  

Taxes, $3,120,745 

Intergovernmental, 
$2,931,665 

Licenses & Permits, 
$89,780 

Charges for Services, 
$609,650 

Fines & Forfeits, 
$193,225 

Grants, $7,800 
Investment Income, 

$7,750 

Reimbursements, 
$46,000 

Misc. Revenue, 
$335,500 

General Fund 2017 Budgeted Revenues



2017 Budget Draft      Page 9 
 
As stated previously, the General Fund is the main operating fund of the Village, with four 
departments. Below is a chart that includes operating and capital for each department. 
 

Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast 
Department  2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Administration $2,133,389 $2,117,025 $2,183,897 $2,258,148  $2,336,943  $2,420,669 
Public Works $1,112,233 $1,075,481 $1,186,998 $1,220,438  $1,159,905  $1,198,111 
Police $3,882,052 $3,902,750 $4,083,303 $4,253,250  $4,424,261  $4,603,581 
Building Dept. $300,465 $291,752 $302,324 $313,805  $325,691  $338,274 
Total Disbursements $7,428,139 $7,387,008 $7,756,523 $8,045,640  $8,246,800  $8,560,636 
 
The expenses can be further divided among different categories. The graph below shows the 
dollar amount and percent of each category to the total General Fund department expenses. 
 

 
 
 
Administration 
 
Major Expenditures: Any account over 5.0% of the total department expenses were selected as 
major. The following three items, account for nearly 70.00% of total Administrative expenses: 
regular salaries 15.47%, risk management insurance premium 8.72%, and garbage collection 
45.51%. Below is a chart that lists all categories for the 2017 budget and the forecast over the 
next five years. 
 
 

Payroll Expenses, 
$3,373,534 , 45%

Taxes, Pensions & 
Insurance, 

$877,590, 12%

Personnel Related, 
$158,731, 2%

Professional 
Services,

$366,072, 5% Commodities,
$188,171, 3%

Contractual Services, 
$1,543,896, 21%

Building & Grounds, 
$230,449, 3%

Capital Outlay,
$130,815, 2%

Miscellaneous, 
$65,670, 1%

Utilities,
$121,630, 2%

Vehicles & 
Equipment, 

$175,300, 2%

Technology, 
$166,281, 2%

Infrastructure 
Maintenance, 
$30,000, 0%

General Fund 2017 Budgeted Department Expenses



2017 Budget Draft      Page 10 
 

Budget     Forecast     
Category 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Payroll Expenses $392,775 $408,692 $422,429 $440,073 $458,687  $478,344 
Taxes, Pensions & Insurance $122,120 $131,136 $140,210 $150,247 $161,134  $172,953 
Personnel Related $27,905 $28,315 $28,730 $29,152 $29,581  $30,015 
Professional Services $251,272 $180,586 $182,856 $185,169 $187,526  $189,928 
Commodities $18,700 $18,868 $19,039 $19,212 $19,387  $19,566 
Contractual Services $1,177,348 $1,213,929 $1,254,237 $1,296,988 $1,342,396  $1,390,693 
Miscellaneous $26,925 $27,154 $27,386 $27,622 $27,861  $28,104 
Building & Grounds $22,630 $22,969 $23,314 $23,664 $24,019  $24,379 
Capital Outlay $6,750 $6,851 $6,954 $7,058 $7,164  $7,272 
Utilities $14,810 $15,025 $15,243 $15,464 $15,688  $15,916 
Technology $72,154 $63,500 $63,500 $63,500 $63,500  $63,500 

Total $2,133,389 $2,117,025 $2,183,897 $2,258,148 $2,336,943  $2,420,669 

Highlights: 
 2017 budgeted expenses of $2,133,389 are $104,946 (or 5.17%) higher than 2016 

budgeted expenses of $2,028,443. A few highlights include: 
o Regular salaries increased $40,000 due to the addition of a Human Resources 

Manager position. 
o Health insurance increased $16,500 based on trends and the addition of the 

Human Resources Manager position. 
o Consultant studies increased $42,500 for a space needs (consolidation of the 

Police/PW facilities and the Village Hall), compensation, and staffing analysis 
studies that were identified in the Management’s Overall Vision Evaluation 
(MOVE) memorandum. 

o The risk management insurance premium account increased $12,348 based on the 
current year charges and adding projected increases for public official bonds 
(2.0%), workers compensation (15%), and liability/property/casualty (15%) 
insurance categories.  

o IT maintenance services decreased $24,897 due to the completion of the Village’s 
Website update and design budgeted at $30,000 in the prior year. 

 
Police Department 
 
Major Expenditures: Any account over 5.0% of the total department expenses were selected as 
major. The following three items, account for 74.43% of total Police Department expenses: 
regular salaries 58.81%, CenCom 7.38%, and health insurance 8.24%.  Below is a chart that lists 
all categories for the 2017 budget and the forecast over the next five years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft      Page 11 
 

Budget     Forecast     
Category 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Payroll Expenses $2,470,759 $2,575,302 $2,690,875 $2,807,818 $2,914,534  $3,024,702 
Taxes, Pensions & Insurance $560,100 $600,289 $646,881 $697,220 $750,811  $809,098 
Personnel Related $122,747 $111,616 $113,200 $114,808 $116,440  $118,097 
Professional Services $65,000 $65,825 $66,662 $67,512 $68,375  $69,251 
Commodities $31,946 $32,425 $32,912 $33,405 $33,906  $34,415 
Contractual Services $333,248 $333,373 $346,374 $343,569 $348,723  $353,954 
Miscellaneous Expenses $38,745 $22,141 $22,314 $22,489 $22,668  $22,849 
Building & Grounds $23,790 $24,147 $24,509 $24,877 $25,250  $25,629 
Capital Outlay $60,740 $15,931 $16,125 $16,322 $16,522  $16,725 
Utilities $10,500 $10,650 $10,802 $10,957 $11,114  $11,273 
Vehicles & Equipment $98,000 $99,470 $100,962 $102,476 $104,014  $105,574 
Technology $66,477 $11,582 $11,688 $11,796 $11,905  $12,016 

Total $3,882,052 $3,902,750 $4,083,303 $4,253,250 $4,424,261  $4,603,581 
 
Highlights: 

 2017 budgeted expenses of $3,882,052 are $308,824 (or 8.64%) higher than 2016 
budgeted expenses of $3,573,228. A few highlights include:  

o Regular salaries increased by $160,763 due to a normal contractual step and cost 
of living increases along with the addition of one Officer that was not included in 
the prior year budget. 

o Part-time salaries decreased $14,687 as one part-time records clerk budgeted at 
$17,000 in 2016 was removed. 

o Health insurance increased $57,000 based on trends and the addition of the one 
officer mentioned above. 

o CenCom increased $26,463 based on the budget information received from 
CenCom. 

o Gas and oil decreased $22,500 based on current year trends. 
o Capital items include: 

 The equipment account has patrol ballistic shields budgeted at $3,000 and 
an evidence drying cabinet at $10,000. 

 The community education account includes two pole mounted radar 
display signs at $12,000. 

 The vehicle maintenance account includes $24,000 for e-citation and crash 
reporting software/printers and $6,000 for software kits that allow squad 
and body cameras to be turned on automatically in the vicinity of an 
accident. 

 The records management charges of $55,000 were moved from fiscal year 
end 2016. The records management system is a multi-year capital 
improvement item to replace the antiquated PIPS system. 

 
Public Works 
 
Major Expenditures: Any account over 5.0% of the total department expenses were selected as 
major. The following four items, account for 58.83% of total Public Works Department 
expenses: health insurance 5.84%, street lights – electrical 7.82%, ice control 10.48%, B&G 
repairs 8.61%, and regular salaries 26.07%.  Below is a chart that lists all categories for the 2017 
budget and the forecast over the next five years. 
 



2017 Budget Draft      Page 12 
 
 

Budget     Forecast     
Category 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Payroll Expenses $326,000 $334,709 $350,557 $367,341 $384,241  $403,483 
Taxes, Pensions & Insurance $128,100 $135,468 $145,788 $157,014 $169,069  $182,439 
Personnel Related $5,834 $5,922 $6,010 $6,100 $6,192  $6,285 
Professional Services $32,000 $22,255 $22,514 $22,777 $23,043  $23,314 
Commodities $136,175 $134,749 $134,925 $135,104 $135,285  $135,470 
Contractual Services $33,050 $33,536 $34,029 $34,530 $35,038  $35,554 
Building & Grounds $184,029 $186,789 $189,591 $192,435 $195,322  $198,251 
Capital Outlay $63,325 $16,852 $96,880 $96,908 $1,937  $1,966 
Utilities $94,720 $94,828 $94,938 $95,050 $95,163  $95,278 
Vehicles & Equipment $71,500 $72,573 $73,661 $74,766 $75,887  $77,026 
Infrastructure Improvements $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 
Technology $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500 $7,500  $7,500 
Infrastructure Maintenance $30,000 $30,300 $30,605 $30,914 $31,227  $31,546 

Total $1,112,233 $1,075,481 $1,186,998 $1,220,438 $1,159,905  $1,198,111 
 
Highlights: 

 2017 budgeted expenses of $1,112,233 are $113,684 (or 11.38%) higher than the 2016 
budgeted expenses of $998,549. A few highlights include:  

o Regular salaries decreased $26,000 as one of the two vacant positions was 
eliminated from the budget. 

o Legal services increased $10,000 for union negotiations as the contract expires 
April 30, 2017. 

o Ice control decreased $27,450 as the budgeted tons to purchase were reduced.  
o B&G contracts increased $28,684 due to the new utility locates contract budgeted 

at $25,200. 
o B&G repairs increased $80,519 as the Motor Fuel Tax Fund (MFT) operating 

accounts were moved to the General Fund. The MFT Fund now only includes 
capital projects. A few of the items moved include: 
 Paint lines on roads & parking lots   $19,000  
 Gravel for road and shoulder repair    $  7,500  
 UPM cold patch     $11,250  
 Hot-mix asphalt for patching    $12,375  

o In addition to the above, other large repair items added include: 
 Replace heater in PW generator room  $  1,600  
 Repairs to War Memorial and Fountain  $  9,000  
 Add 2" water line drop in PW garage   $  3,000  
 Extend fence at PW to enclose salt barn  $13,700 

o Capital items include: 
 Traffic sign replacement    $  8,000 
 Liquid anti-icing, deicing distributor   $18,000  
 Sidewalk machine     $15,000  
 Sign post puller/pounder    $10,000 

 
 
 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft      Page 13 
 
 
Building  
 
Major Expenditures: Any account over 5.0% of the total department expenses were selected as 
major. The following three items, account for 84.00% of total Building Department expenses: 
IMRF expense 6.32%, health insurance 10.65%, IT maintenance services 6.46%, and regular 
salaries 60.57%. Below is a chart that lists all categories for the 2017 budget and the forecast 
over the next five years. 
 

Budget     Forecast     
Category 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Payroll Expenses $184,000 $188,500 $194,000 $200,000 $206,000  $212,000 
Taxes, Pensions, & Insurance $67,270 $70,434 $75,029 $80,025 $85,420  $91,504 
Personnel Related $2,245 $2,279 $2,313 $2,348 $2,383  $2,419 
Professional Services $17,800 $18,052 $18,308 $18,567 $18,831  $19,098 
Commodities $1,350 $1,370 $1,391 $1,412 $1,433  $1,454 
Contractual Services $250 $254 $258 $261 $265  $269 
Utilities $1,600 $1,624 $1,648 $1,673 $1,698  $1,724 
Vehicles & Equipment $5,800 $5,887 $5,975 $6,065 $6,156  $6,248 
Technology $20,150 $3,352 $3,403 $3,454 $3,505  $3,558 

Total $300,465 $291,752 $302,324 $313,805 $325,691  $338,274 
 
Highlights: 

 2017 budgeted expenses of $300,465 are $25,822 (or 9.40%) higher than 2016 budgeted 
expenses of $274,643. A few highlights include:  

o The IT maintenance services account increased $18,622 for a BS&A software 
conversion and increased annual service charges. BS&A went with a different 
platform and will no longer provide any new features or upgrades to the software 
we have now. 

 
Other Financing Use – Bond Servicing and Replacement Funding 
 
Major Expenditures: Capital & Infrastructure Replacement and Bond Servicing  
Comments: As utility taxes continue to decline the bond servicing transfer will increase over the 
years. The replacement contributions all relate to funding capital and infrastructure 
improvements. The amount of contributions will be dependent on the adequacy of reserve 
balances each year in the General and Water and Sewer Funds 
 
The chart below shows the 2017 budgeted contributions. Forty three percent of the cash moved 
to another fund relates to debt service to cover such payments. The remaining contributions all 
relate to capital items, with the first year of funding for replacement items starting in fiscal year 
end 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft      Page 14 
 
 

 
 
General Fund Cash Reserves 
 
The chart below shows the reserve balances in the General Fund. As shown by the chart, by 
fiscal year end 2018 the unreserved cash balance will be eliminated and there will only be a 
25.43% operating reserve by the end of that year.  
 
Description 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Unreserved Cash $1,218,990  $899,313 ($448,156) ($2,058,676) ($3,823,049) ($5,711,953) ($7,635,368) 
Reserve for Operating $2,228,442  $2,216,102 $2,326,957 $2,413,692 $2,474,040  $2,568,191 $2,652,941 
Reserve for Street Replacement $325,000  $325,000 $325,000 $325,000 $325,000  $325,000 $325,000 
Reserve for Replacement Funds $367,374  $375,335 $383,472 $387,377 $391,478  $395,783 $342,381 
Reserve for Debt Service $525,000  $550,000 $575,000 $600,000 $600,000  $600,000 $500,000 
Restricted Escrow/Seizure Cash $185,305  $145,000 $130,000 $115,000 $100,000  $85,000 $70,000 

Cash Available $4,850,111  $4,510,750 $3,292,273 $1,782,393 $67,469  ($1,737,979) ($3,745,046) 

 
        

   

Special Revenue Funds 
 
Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The Village has two special revenue 
fund types; Motor Fuel Tax Fund and Bright Meadows SSA #1 Fund.  
 
Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) Fund 
 
The MFT Fund is used to account for the motor fuel tax receipts and eligible MFT operating and 
capital expenses of the Village.  

Contribution for 
Streets

(Fund 35),
$325,000, 27%

Contribution for 
Vehicles
(Fund 60),

$217,001, 18%

Contribution for 
Technology
(Fund 61),

$67,475, 5%

Contribution for 
Building Items 

(Fund 62),
$80,404, 7%

Transfer to Cover
Debt Service 
(Fund 26), 

$525,000, 43%

Bond Servicing and Replacement Contributions
Fiscal Year End 2017



2017 Budget Draft      Page 15 
 
Major Revenue Sources: Motor Fuel Taxes  
Major Expenditures: Roadway Capital Projects 
Comments: Cash projected at a negative $173,205 at the end of 2020 due to roadway 
resurfacing project expenses higher then motor fuel tax allotments. Cash increases significantly 
thereafter, mainly due to no roadway projects programmed in the capital program. There are no 
roadway reconstruction projects in this fund, only maintenance such as resurfacing. 
 

 
 
Highlights: 

 2016 budgeted revenues of $645,043 are $110,431 (or 14.62%) lower than 2016 
budgeted revenues of $755,474.   

o Motor fuel tax allotments increased $38,407 based on the IML 2017 per capita 
projection of $25.90 versus the per capita amount of $23.80 used in the 2016 
budget. 

o CDBG Revenues decreased $85,000 as the application for Forest Avenue was not 
accepted as a CDBG eligible project. 

o The reimbursement for the Hart Road construction engineering services decreased 
64.50% from the 2016 budget. The reimbursement is at 70% of the $477,247 cost, 
of which $276,628 has already been received. 

 2017 budgeted expenses of $1,252,480 are $109,546 (or 8.04%) lower than the 2016 
budgeted expenses of $1,362,027.  

o All operating expenses have been moved to the General Fund., Public Works 
Department. 

($200,000)

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

$1,800,000

2014
Actual

2015
Actual

2016
Budget

2016
Projected

2017
Budget

2018
Forecast

2019
Forecast

2020
Forecast

2021
Forecast

2022
Forecast

Motor Fuel Tax Fund

Revenue Expenses Cash Balance



2017 Budget Draft      Page 16 
 

o Capital items include the following: 
 Crack Sealing Program    $  15,000 
 Rehabilitate Nippersink Road    $555,000  

o The following capital items are carryovers from the previous year: 
 Forest Avenue Construction    $  50,951 
 MacGillis Bridge Construction    $327,118 
 Hart/Sunset Reconstruction     $304,412 

 
The yearend cash balance is reserved at 100% for capital. The fund balance policy does not 
specifically allocate reserve balances. However, if the same policy as that used for the Capital 
Projects Fund, the fund balance policy reserves should be maintained at 50% of the five-year 
average for capital expenditures supported by this fund. As shown by the following chart, the 
reserves for capital are below the five-year average throughout the forecast with the exception on 
year end 2022. 
 

Budget   Forecast   
Description 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Motor Fuel Tax $187,008 $147,229 $158,390 ($173,201) $257,281  $788,435 
Operating $0 $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 
Capital $187,008 $147,229 $158,390 ($173,201) $257,281  $788,435 
5-Year Ave. in 2017 $527,093 $527,093 $527,093 $527,093 $527,093  $527,093 

 
 
Bright Meadows SSA#1 Fund 
 
The Bright Meadows SSA #1 Fund is used to account for all revenues and expenses related to 
the special service area that was established in December 2002. There are 282 addresses in the 
special service area each receiving a flat tax amount of $85.  
 
Major Revenue Sources: Property Taxes 
Major Expenditures: Landscaping Charges 
Comments: Should cash balances be projected to increase, the ability may exist to possibly 
abate more property taxes per address. Maximum amount per address is $233; current tax levy 
per address is $85.  
 
Highlights: 

 2017 budgeted revenues of $23,744 are $50 (or 0.21%) lower than 2016 budgeted 
revenues of $23,793. 

o Real estate taxes were kept the same, with an abatement of $55 per address, the 
same as the 2014 abatement amount.  

o Interest income decreased based on a rate of 0.01% versus 0.05% used in the 
previous year. 

 2017 budgeted expenses of $32,350 are $10,772 (or 49.92%) higher than the 2016 
budgeted expenses of $21,578.   

o Landscaping increased by $10,772 as $10,000 was added to the normal contract 
amount for additional Special Service Area (SSA) expenses. Such expenses 
include sign restoration, detention issues, and any other common area expense 
that would be included in an SSA. 



2017 Budget Draft      Page 17 
 
The yearend cash balance is reserved at 30% for the following year operating expenses with the 
remaining cash balance reserved for maintenance items and/or capital. The following chart 
depicts the reserve balances for the yearend 2017 budget and over the following five years 
through 2022.  
 

Budget  Forecast 
Description 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

SSA #1 Bright Meadows $124,578 $125,971 $117,364 $118,353 $109,084  $109,402 
Operating $6,705 $9,705 $6,826 $9,903 $7,027  $7,133 
Capital $117,873 $116,266 $110,538 $108,450 $102,057  $102,269 

The graph below shows the cash at a healthy balance while revenues and expenses continue to 
match each other throughout the financial forecast. 
 

 
 

Debt Service Funds 
 
Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, 
general obligation long-term debt principal, interest and related costs (other than those financed 
by proprietary funds).  The Village currently has four debt series: 
 

Description Principal Interest Total Maturity 

2005 Bonds Debt Service $535,000 $33,080 $568,080  1/1/2018 
2010A Bonds Debt Service $9,100,000 $3,661,060 $12,761,060  1/1/2029 
2010B Bonds Debt Service $610,000 $63,820 $673,820  1/1/2021 
2011 Bonds Debt Service $2,075,000 $292,350 $2,367,350  1/1/2022 

  Total $12,320,000 $4,050,310 $16,370,310  

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

2014
Actual

2015
Actual

2016
Budget

2016
Projected

2017
Budget

2018
Forecast

2019
Forecast

2020
Forecast

2021
Forecast

2022
Forecast

Bright Meadows Fund

Revenue Expenses Cash Balance



2017 Budget Draft      Page 18 
 
The four bonds are accounted for in three debt service funds.  
 
Major Revenue Sources: Utility Taxes – Telecommunications, Electric and Gas 
Major Expenditures: Principal and Interest Payments 
Comments: Utility taxes continue to decrease; therefore, the use of other general revenues 
(Contributions from the General Fund) may increase in the future. 
 

 
 
The column on the right is the revenues and expenses each year and the column on the left shows 
the corresponding fiscal year end cash balance. The dip in expenses in 2019 is due to the 2005 
debt series maturing in 2018.   
 
The following table lists the year end necessary reserves, the estimated reserves through 2022 
and the amount over/under the minimum reserve. 
 

Budget   Forecast   
Description 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Principal payment reserve  
  4 months of next year's payment $251,667 $208,333 $305,000 $330,000  $368,333 $368,333 
Interest payment reserve  
  4 four months of July 1st payment $160,629 $151,928 $144,627 $133,523  $120,758 $120,758 
Yearend reserve necessary $412,295 $360,262 $449,627 $463,523  $489,092 $489,092 
Debt Service Cash $122,868 $140,545 $330,077 $281,167  $187,799 $24,806 
General Fund Reserve of Cash $550,000 $575,000 $600,000 $600,000  $600,000 $600,000 
Total $672,868 $715,545 $930,077 $881,167  $787,799 $624,806 

Over/(Under) Reserve $260,573 $355,283 $480,450 $417,645  $298,708 $135,715 

 
 

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

2014
Actual

2015
Actual

2016
Budget

2016
Projected

2017
Budget

2018
Forecast

2019
Forecast

2020
Forecast

2021
Forecast

2022
Forecast

Debt Service Funds

Revenue Expenses Cash Balance



2017 Budget Draft      Page 19 
 
Utility taxes account for the majority of the operating revenues, with a transfer from the General 
Fund accounting for the remaining revenue. The chart below shows that utility taxes have gone 
from approximately $955,000 in fiscal year 2011 to the budget amount of $795,000 for 2017, a 
nearly 17% drop in six years. It should be noted that the gas utility tax is split between debt 
service funds and the Capital Projects Fund.  
 

 
 
Due to the drop in utility taxes the contribution from the General fund is expected to increase in 
future years.  
 

Capital Funds 
 
The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition 
or construction of major capital facilities and infrastructure improvements (streets & storm 
sewer).  
 
Major Revenue Sources: Contributions from the General Fund and Gas Utility Tax 
Major Expenditures: Capital Projects 
Comments: There is no long-term high growth revenue source for this fund. 
 
Highlights: 

 2017 budgeted revenues of $425,139 are $71,950 (or 41.81%) lower than 2016 budgeted 
revenues of $497,089.  

o Fifty percent of the gas utility tax received by the village provides a recurring 
revenue source to support capital projects. The 2017 budgeted gas tax receipts are 
nearly 20% lower than the 2016 budget based on current year trends. 

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

$450,000

FYE 2011 FYE 2012 FYE 2013 FYE 2014 FYE 2015 FYE 2016
Estimated

FYE 2017
Budget

Utility Taxes

Telephone Electric Gas



2017 Budget Draft      Page 20 
 

o Grants are lower by $14,250 as the LED grant was received in fiscal year end 
2016.  

o The capital projects reimbursement includes amounts for Long Lake Drive 
construction engineering (70% reimbursement). $28,500 was received in fiscal 
year end 2016 with the remaining amount collected in 2017. 

 2017 budgeted expenses of $893,360 are $105,874 (or 13.44%) higher than the 2016 
budgeted expenses of $787,486. Projects include: 

o Professional Services 
 Design for Resurfacing – Madrona 

 Village Neighborhoods1 & 2   $  31,600 

 Traffic Sign Inventory   $  32,000  
o Contractual services: 

 Mosquito Management    $  30,000 
o Urban Forest Management 

 Parkway Tree Pruning Program    $  60,000  
 Parkway Tree Replacement Program   $  75,000  

o Roadway improvements: 
 Hillandale Drive Design     $    6,200  
 Midland Drive      $180,900  
 North Rosedale Pavement Rehab.    $  90,000 

o Land/Land Improvements: 
 Old Village Hall Property    $  10,000  

o Other Enhancements: 
 Cedar Valley Park Pond Project   $  75,000  
 Conversion LED Street Lights Program  $  40,000  
 Heavy Storage Racking    $  20,000  
 Curb/Gutter and Sidewalk Program   $  59,000  
 Drainage Improvements 700 Railroad  $  53,000  
 PW/Police Dept. Lot Resurfacing Design  $  16,800  
 Tear Downs      $  10,000  
 Village Hall Lot Resurfacing Design   $    6,000  
 Welcome Signs     $  51,000  

As the graph on the next page shows, there is a significant reduction of cash due to programmed 
capital projects through fiscal year end 2020 (negative $45,000). Cash increases quickly starting 
in fiscal year end 2021 as there is very little capital programmed thereafter. 
 
 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft      Page 21 
 

 
 
Per policy the yearend cash balance should be maintained at 50% of the five-year average for 
capital expenditures supported by this fund. As shown by the following chart, the reserves for 
capital are below the five-year average with the exception of the current budget year of 2017. 
 

Budget Forecast 
Description 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Ending Cash $920,296 $521,778 $124,530 ($45,004) $114,011  $264,322 
5-Year Ave. in 2017 $654,164 $654,164 $654,164 $654,164 $654,164  $654,164 

Over (Under) $266,132 ($132,386) ($529,634) ($699,168) ($540,153) ($389,842) 

 
 

Enterprise Funds 
 
Enterprise Funds are used to account for operation that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar or private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs 
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public on a 
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 
 
Water and Sewer Fund 
 
The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for water and sewer operations, capital projects, 
and debt service payments that are supported by user charges.  
 

($200,000)

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

2014
Actual

2015
Actual

2016
Budget

2016
Projected

2017
Budget

2018
Forecast

2019
Forecast

2020
Forecast

2021
Forecast

2022
Forecast

Capital Improvements Fund

Revenue Expenses Cash Balance



2017 Budget Draft      Page 22 
 
Major Revenue Sources: User Fees  
Major Expenditures: Utility Payments and Capital Projects 
Comments: In the fall of 2010 a rate structure was approved with increases from that time 
through November 2014 (annually in November). A new rate structure will need to be done in 
the future to facilitate cash flow projections for planned operating and capital items .  
 
Highlights: 

 2016 budgeted revenues of $4,172,692 are $94,333 (or 2.31%) higher than 2016 
budgeted revenues of $4,078,359.  

o The water and sewer maintenance fee increased $15,000 based on trends. 
o Water fees increased $25,000 based on the anticipated JAWA rate increase of 

2.61% effective May 1, 2016.   
o Sewer fees increased $50,000 based on the Lake County Sewer rate increasing 

5.0% effective January 1, 2016.   

 2016 budgeted expenses of $7,162,322 are $1,671,089 (or 30.45%) higher than the 2016 
budgeted expenses of $5,490,513. 

o Health insurance increased $13,000 based on trends and the addition of the 
Human Resources position in Administration that is allocated 25% to the Water 
and Sewer Fund. 

o Water meters increased due to new requests to purchase a 2 and a 6 inch large 
meter at a costs of $16,350. 

o B&G contracts increased $27,853 due to the new utility locates contract budgeted 
at $25,000. 

o B & G repairs increased $10,000 based on trends and $6,000 was added for b-box 
repairs. 

o Sewer fees increased $50,000 based on the Lake County Sewer rate increasing 
5.0% effective January 1, 2016.   

o The repairs pumps/telemet account (#99206) was combined with the repairs to 
pumps/lift stations account (#99208). 

o A few of the larger dollar capital requests include: 
 MXU Replacements      $100,000 
 Cambridge Lift Station and Force Main   $465,000  
 Cedar Lake Rd. Lift Station Stabilization   $211,442  
 Midland Drive Water Main Replacement   $582,600  
 Nippersink Lift Station Replacement    $440,000  
 Rehabilitate Nippersink Road     $110,000  
 Sanitary Sewer System Maintenance    $375,000  
 Well No. 3 Rehabilitation     $325,000  

o Carryovers include: 
 Cambridge Lift Station Design     $    9,243 
 Dorothy Water Main Replacement    $  40,000  
 Washington Street Main Improvements   $  38,896 

 
 



2017 Budget Draft      Page 23 
 

o Three replacement funds receive contributions from the General and Water/Sewer 
Funds based on an inventory of items and the annual depreciation amount to fund 
such items in the future. The three funds with 2017 depreciation amounts are: 
 Vehicle Replacement Fund, contribution of $98,540 
 Technology Replacement Fund, contribution of $18,454 
 Building Replacement Fund, contribution of $22,770 

 

 
 
The chart above includes all operating expenses, capital, and contributions to other funds.  The 
decrease in cash is the result of adding a number of new projects supported by this fund. These 
projects will need to be prioritized based on cash availability. 
 
The table below shows the levels of reserves of each category. The reserve for capital and in 
general, overall cash decreased significantly due to nearly $12.6 million in water and sewer 
infrastructure improvements between fiscal year end 2017 and 2022.  
 

Budget Forecast 
Reserve Description 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Operating Cash (30% of Expenses) 1,118,733 1,146,158 1,174,304 1,203,434  1,234,394 1,234,394 
Debt Service Reserve 137,583 138,683 134,620 139,995  0 0 
Reserve for Replacement Funds 141,862 144,096 145,113 146,181  147,302 148,433 
Reserve for Capital 2,535,955 369,454 (856,856) (4,752,956) (5,551,619) (6,241,493) 

Cash Available 3,934,133 1,798,391 597,181 (3,263,346) (4,169,923) (4,858,666) 

 
 
 
 

($6,000,000)

($4,000,000)

($2,000,000)

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

2014
Actual

2015
Actual

2016
Budget

2016
Projected

2017
Budget

2018
Forecast

2019
Forecast

2020
Forecast

2021
Forecast

2022
Forecast

Water & Sewer Fund

Revenue Expenses Cash Balance



2017 Budget Draft      Page 24 
 
Commuter Parking Lot Fund 
 
The Commuter Parking Lot Fund accounts for the METRA line parking services operating 
revenue and expenses. 
 
Major Revenue Sources: Commuter Lot Daily Parking Receipts and Parking Permits 
Major Expenditures: Main Operating Expenses Include Snow Removal, Landscaping, and 
Electrical Service 
Comments: One large project is scheduled for 2017 – repaving the main commuter lot. The 
project, along with resurfacing the other two main lots (in 2018 & 2020) creates a negative 
position in this fund. These projects will need to be prioritized based on cash availability. 
 

 
 
Highlights: 
 2017 budgeted revenues of $75,037 are $9,141 (or 10.86%) lower than 2016 budgeted 

revenues of $84,178.  
o Parking lot income decreased $9,000 based in current year 2016 trends, with no 

projected increase for next year.  
 2017 budgeted expenses of $271,234 are $15,518 (or 5.41%) lower than the 2016 

budgeted expenses of $286,752.   
o The land/land improvements account includes $203,000 for the main parking lot 

repaving, which was moved from fiscal year end 2016. In addition, $12,200 was 
budgeted for engineering services for the lot south of the tracks/east of Cedar 
Lake Road.   

 

($300,000)

($200,000)

($100,000)

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

2014
Actual

2015
Actual

2016
Budget

2016
Projected

2017
Budget

2018
Forecast

2019
Forecast

2020
Forecast

2021
Forecast

2022
Forecast

Commuter Parking Lot

Revenue Expenses Cash Balance



2017 Budget Draft      Page 25 
 
Since fiscal year end 2011when receipts were at $104,355, annual commuter lot receipts have 
decreased $29,355, 28.13% to the 2017 budget amount of $75,000. 
 

 
 
The following graph shows the estimated cash reserves via the bar graph versus the acquisition 
cost and action year expense reserves. 
 

 

$50,000

$60,000

$70,000

$80,000

$90,000

$100,000

$110,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Estimated

2017
Budget

Commuter Parking Lot Receipts

($400,000)

($200,000)

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

2017
Budget

2018 2019 2020
Forecast

2021 2022

Commuter Parking Lot

Cash Reserve for Capital Acquisition Cost Reserve Action Year Expense Reserve



2017 Budget Draft      Page 26 
 
The line that starts at slight above $400,000 shows what the reserve cash balance should be if 
money was placed aside since the asset was put into service at original cost, based on the useful 
life of the asset. The top line, starting slightly under $800,000 shows what the reserve cash 
balance should be if money was placed aside since the asset was put into service, but based on 
the action year replacement value, which includes an inflation figure of 2%. Each year the 
acquisition cost reserve should increase by $20,659 and the action year expense reserve by 
$37,102.  

 
Internal Service Funds 

 
Internal service funds are used for operations serving other funds or departments within a 
government on a cost-reimbursement basis.  
 
Vehicle Replacement Fund 
 
Major Revenue Sources: Contributions from the General and Water & Sewer Funds 
Major Expenditures: Capital plan expenses – vehicles and related equipment, large equipment 
purchases. 
Comments: Keeping up with vehicle replacement is vital to be sure staff has safe and reliable 
vehicles and equipment to perform their tasks as necessary. Adequate cash reserve will be 
important for timely and/or emergency replacements. Increasing the cash reserve will be 
determined upon the cash availability in the General and Water and Sewer Funds that support the 
capital items in this fund. 
 

 

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

$450,000

$500,000

2014
Actual

2015
Actual

2016
Budget

2016
Projected

2017
Budget

2018
Forecast

2019
Forecast

2020
Forecast

2021
Forecast

2022
Forecast

Vehicle Replacement Fund

Contributions Capital Expenses Cash Balance



2017 Budget Draft      Page 27 
 
Highlights: 

 Current annual depreciation amounts are $134,725 and $52,895 for General and 
Water/Sewer, respectively. In the prior year annual depreciation amounts were $144,667 
and $65,693 for General and Water/Sewer, respectively, with a 150% markup to build 
fund balance. Staff kept contributions same as last year to build fund balance.  

 The annual depreciation funding levels also include any equipment purchases necessary 
for the asset to be placed in service.  

 2017 capital items include: 
o Radar Trailer     $  18,000  
o Police Vehicles    $  84,036 
o Police Vehicles Equipment   $  15,450 
o Large Dump Trucks    $185,000 
o Pickup Truck Replacements   $  30,000 
o Refurbish Trucks    $  60,000 
o Dump Body  (carryover)   $  54,537 

 Based on the cost in the acquisition year, useful life, and the current age of the asset, the 
reserve balance for the vehicle replacement items should be $1,407,022. The projected 
2017 ending cash balance is $14,261. 

 
The line that starts around $1.5 million shows what the reserve cash balance should be if money 
was placed aside since the asset was put into service at original cost, based on the useful life of 
the asset. The top line, starting around $2.0 million shows what the reserve cash balance should 
be if money was placed aside since the asset was put into service, but based on the action year 

$14,261  $13,241  $1,148 
$159,887 

$328,381  $437,033 

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

$4,000,000

2017
Budget

2018 2019 2020
Forecast

2021 2022

Vehicle Replacement Fundement Fund

Cash Reserve for Capital Acquisition Cost Reserve Action Year Expense Reserve



2017 Budget Draft      Page 28 
 
replacement value, which includes an inflation figure of 2%. Each year the acquisition cost 
reserve should increase by $187,620 and the action year expense reserve by $303,910. 
 
Technology Replacement Fund 
 
Major Revenue Sources: Contributions from the General and Water & Sewer Funds 
Major Expenditures: Capital Plan Expenses – Computers, Software, Printers, Copiers, and any 
other Technology Item 
Comments: Keeping up with technology is critical to be sure staff has the tools to be effective 
and efficient in the delivery of work products and in general, customer service. Adequate cash 
reserve will be important for timely and/or emergency replacements. Increasing the cash reserve 
will be determined upon the cash availability in the General and Water & Sewer Funds that 
support the capital items in this fund. 
 

 
 
Highlights: 

 Contributions from the General Fund are budgeted at $70,841, which is 4.99% over the 
2016 budget amount of $67,475.  

 Contributions from the Water/Sewer Fund are budgeted at $18,454, which is 2.41% 
under the 2016 budget amount of $18,909. 
 
 
 
 

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

$160,000

$180,000

$200,000

2014
Actual

2015
Actual

2016
Budget

2016
Projected

2017
Budget

2018
Forecast

2019
Forecast

2020
Forecast

2021
Forecast

2022
Forecast

Technology Replacement Fund

Contributions Capital Expenses Cash Balance



2017 Budget Draft      Page 29 
 

 2017 capital items include: 
o Seven (7) computers for Administration 
o Financial Management System 
o Village Hall server 
o Six (6) computers for Police 
o New Mobile Data Computers for Police Squads 
o Automated External Defibrillator Replacements 
o Replacement Patrol Vehicle Radar Unit(s)  
o Two (2) computers for Building Department 
o Two (2) computers for Public Works 

 monies set aside for emergency replacement items 
 Based on the cost in the acquisition year, useful life, and the current age of the asset, the 

reserve balance for the technology replacement items should be $554,610. The projected 
fiscal year ended 2017 ending balance is $115,648. 

 

 
 
The line that starts around $600,000 shows what the reserve cash balance should be if money 
was placed aside since the asset was put into service at original cost, based on the useful life of 
the asset. The top line, starting around $800,000 shows what the reserve cash balance should be 
if money was placed aside since the asset was put into service, but based on the action year 
replacement value, which includes an inflation figure of 2%. Each year the acquisition cost 
reserve should increase by $89,295 and the action year expense reserve by $129,247. 
 
 
 
 

$115,648 $78,220 $49,176 
$110,551 

$184,601 $181,085 

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

$1,600,000

2017
Budget

2018 2019 2020
Forecast

2021 2022

Technology Replacement Fund

Cash Reserve for Capital Acquisition Cost Reserve Action Year Expense Reserve



2017 Budget Draft      Page 30 
 
Building Replacement Fund 
 
Major Revenue Sources: Contributions from the General and Water & Sewer Funds 
Major Expenditures: Capital Plan Expenses – Heating and Air Items, Carpeting, Furniture, and 
any Other Building Type Item. 
Comments: As the Village’s buildings and building fixtures age, increasing the cash reserve will 
be important for timely and/or emergency replacements. Increasing the cash reserve will be 
determined upon the cash availability in the General and Water and Sewer Funds that support the 
capital items in this fund. 
 
The graph that follows shows the contributions, capital expenses, and cash balance through 2022.  
 

 
 
Highlights: 

 Contributions from the General Fund are budgeted at $79,533, which represents 90% of 
the annual depreciation funding levels. This is an increase from the 85% used for fiscal 
year end 2016. 

 Contributions from the Water/Sewer Fund are budgeted at $22,770, which also represents 
90% of the annual depreciation funding levels. This is an increase from the 85% used for 
fiscal year end 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

2014
Actual

2015
Actual

2016
Budget

2016
Projected

2017
Budget

2018
Forecast

2019
Forecast

2020
Forecast

2021
Forecast

2022
Forecast

Building Replacement Fund

Contributions Capital Expenses Cash Balance



2017 Budget Draft      Page 31 
 

 Capital items of $183,000 are included in the 2017 budget. A few of the capital items 
included in budget year 2017 are:  
 

o Salt Barn Repairs      $12,000  
o Village Hall Vestibule     $12,500 (Moved From 2016) 
o Insulate Exposed Attic    $18,500 (Moved From 2016) 
o Lightning Protection System    $21,000 
o Village Owned Building for Rent   $30,000 

 
 The remaining capital items are contingency amounts for painting, furniture, and large 

equipment replacement. 
 Based on the cost in the acquisition year, useful life, and the current age of the asset, the 

reserve balance for building replacement items should be $1,347,943. The projected 2017 
ending cash balance is $244,663. 

 
The line that starts around $1 million shows what the reserve cash balance should be if money 
was placed aside since the asset was put into service at original cost, based on the useful life of 
the asset. The top line, starting around $7.6 million shows what the reserve cash balance should 
be if money was placed aside since the asset was put into service, but based on the action year 
replacement value, which includes an inflation figure of 2%. Each year the acquisition cost 
reserve should increase by $113,671and the action year expense reserve by $644,552.  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

$244,663  $238,674  $223,368  $263,060  $302,756  $347,456 
$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

2017
Budget

2018 2019 2020
Forecast

2021 2022

Building Replacement Fund

Cash Reserve for Capital Acquisition Cost Reserve Action Year Expense Reserve



2017 Budget Draft      Page 32 
 

Fiduciary Funds 
 
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Village in a trust capacity or as an 
agent for individual, private organizations, other government units and/or other funds. The 
Village utilizes one pension trust fund and a number of agency funds which are generally used to 
account for assets that the Village holds in a fiduciary capacity or on behalf of others as their 
agent. 
 
Police Pension Fund 
 
The Police Pension Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources to be used for 
retirement annuity payments to employees covered by the plan. Resources are contributed by 
officers at rates fixed by law and by the Village at amounts determined by an actuarial study 
which is provided by an annual tax levy. 
 
Major Revenue Sources: Property Taxes and Employee Contributions 
Major Expenditures: Retirement, Disability and Surviving Spouse Benefits 
Comments: The increase in the Police Pension levy has reduced the General Fund levy 
supporting general services. 
 

 
 
There is no specified reserve balance for the Police Pension Fund. The Village’s Fund Balance 
Policy states that net assets shall be adequate to fully fund the Police Pension Fund by the date 
required by state statute. An annual actuarial study will be performed to determine the 
appropriate level of funding. Therefore, the following chart depicts cash balances for the yearend 
2017 budget and over the following five years through 2022 for benefit payments, other 
operating expenses, and obligated for future annuity payments.  

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

$900,000

$1,000,000

$1,100,000

2014
Actual

2016
Actual

2016
Budget

2016
Projected

2017
Budget

2018
Forecast

2019
Forecast

2020
Forecast

2021
Forecast

2022
Forecast

Police Pension Fund

Revenue Expenses



2017 Budget Draft      Page 33 
 
 

Budget   Forecast   
Description 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Police Pension Fund $6,518,287 $6,855,688 $7,199,381 $7,549,571  $7,906,398 $8,270,686 
Benefit Payments $376,096 $385,796 $395,796 $405,996  $416,421 $426,421 
Other Operating $55,125 $55,802 $56,832 $57,858  $58,932 $60,028 
Future Annuity Payments $6,087,066 $6,414,090 $6,746,754 $7,085,717  $7,431,046 $7,784,237 

 
The graph below shows the tax levy amounts, including the upcoming 2016 tax levy. Over the 
past ten (10) years the Police Pension levy has increased $192,062, a 69.43% increase since the 
2007 tax levy of $276,631. The line graph with the percentages shown is the percent funded each 
year. Although the tax levy has increased dramatically since 2007, the funding percentage has 
averaged 60.07% and as of the last State (Department of Insurance) actuarial review the funded 
percentage was 63.73%. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

57.82%

65.91%

63.24%

65.92%

57.37%

57.16%

51.60%

57.70%

60.22%

63.73%

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

$450,000

$500,000

$550,000

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Police Pension Fund
Tax Levy Year

Tax Levy Amount Funding Ratio



2017 Budget Draft      Page 34 
 
 
Agency Funds 
 
As stated previously agency funds are generally used to account for assets that the Village holds 
in a fiduciary capacity or on behalf of others as their agent. The Village has the following agency 
funds: 

 Impact Fee Fund 

 Builders Escrow 

 Lakewood Grove Special Service #1 

 Lakewood Grove Special Service #3 

 Lakewood Grove Special Service #4 

No budgets are completed for the above funds and for audit purposes there is no profit (loss) 
statement due to the nature of the Agency Fund type.  
 
Permanent Funds 
 
A permanent fund is used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only 
earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support a government’s programs. The 
Village has one permanent fund, the Working Cash Fund. The Working Cash Fund was 
supported by property taxes; however, effective with the 2013 levy, an extension was no longer 
prepared.  Therefore, with no major revenue source and minimum interest income earned no 
budget was prepared.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft               Appendix A: Summary of Accounts Page A 
 

Budget Budget Dollar Percent 
Account # Description 2017 2016 Change Change 

General Fund  -  Revenues 
01-05-50-55001 Real Estate Taxes $3,120,745 $3,068,769 $51,976  1.69% 
01-05-52-55201 Road & Bridge Tax $60,000 $58,410 $1,590  2.72% 
01-05-52-55203 State Use Tax $429,792 $354,807 $74,985  21.13% 
01-05-52-55205 Sales Tax $500,000 $500,000 $0  0.00% 
01-05-52-55207 State Income tax $1,865,478 $1,810,611 $54,867  3.03% 
01-05-52-55209 Replacement Tax $24,395 $23,684 $711  3.00% 
01-05-52-55211 Video Gaming Tax $52,000 $30,000 $22,000  73.33% 
01-05-54-55401 Business License $7,500 $7,500 $0  0.00% 
01-05-54-55403 Vendor License $2,080 $2,100 ($20) (0.95%) 
01-05-54-55405 Liquor License $26,400 $27,600 ($1,200) (4.35%) 
01-05-54-55409 Building Permits $52,500 $52,500 $0  0.00% 
01-05-54-55411 Inspection Fees $1,300 $1,300 $0  0.00% 
01-05-56-55605 Labor / Equip Reimb.  - MFT $0 $25,000 ($25,000) (100.00%) 
01-05-56-55613 Garbage Fees $605,000 $600,000 $5,000  0.83% 
01-05-56-55615 Zoning Hearing Fees $2,750 $2,000 $750  37.50% 
01-05-56-55619 Off / Accident Receipts $1,900 $1,900 $0  0.00% 
01-05-60-56001 Fines $35,000 $32,000 $3,000  9.38% 
01-05-60-56003 Circuit Court Fines $125,000 $115,000 $10,000  8.70% 
01-05-60-56005 Senate 740 Revenues $14,775 $16,775 ($2,000) (11.92%) 
01-05-60-56007 Seizure: Computer Crime $0 $3,000 ($3,000) (100.00%) 
01-05-60-56009 Federal Seizures $18,450 $16,850 $1,600  9.50% 
01-05-62-56200 Grant Income $7,800 $10,400 ($2,600) (25.00%) 
01-05-64-56401 Interest Income $7,750 $12,353 ($4,603) (37.26%) 
01-05-65-56520 School Resource Officer Fees $46,000 $47,000 ($1,000) (2.13%) 
01-05-66-56601 Miscellaneous Receipts $60,000 $95,000 ($35,000) (36.84%) 
01-05-66-56607 Comcast Cable Franchise $177,550 $178,000 ($450) (0.25%) 
01-05-66-56608 AT&T Video Franchise $74,200 $64,000 $10,200  15.94% 
01-05-66-56609 AT&T Franchise $4,000 $3,500 $500  14.29% 
01-05-66-56610 AT&T PEG Fees $13,250 $13,000 $250  1.92% 
01-05-66-56611 Recycling Rebate SWALCO $500 $15,000 ($14,500) (96.67%) 
01-05-66-56617 Rent Payment $6,000 $6,000 $0  0.00% 

Total $7,342,115 $7,194,059 $148,056  2.06% 

General Fund  - Administration Department 
01-20-70-67001 Regular Salaries $330,000 $290,000 $40,000  13.79% 
01-20-70-67006 Elected Officials Salaries $45,600 $45,600 $0  0.00% 
01-20-70-67011 Committee Member Salaries $4,425 $5,310 ($885) (16.67%) 
01-20-70-67021 Part-Time Salaries $12,500 $8,250 $4,250  51.52% 
01-20-70-67031 Overtime $250 $125 $125  100.00% 
01-20-71-67101 IMRF Expense $34,250 $29,000 $5,250  18.10% 
01-20-71-67107 Dental Insurance $3,225 $2,100 $1,125  53.57% 
01-20-71-67108 Vision Insurance $400 $250 $150  60.00% 
01-20-71-67109 Life Insurance $245 $225 $20  8.89% 
01-20-71-67110 Health Insurance $54,000 $37,500 $16,500  44.00% 
01-20-71-67111 Social Security Expense $24,300 $21,750 $2,550  11.72% 
01-20-71-67112 Medicare $5,700 $5,100 $600  11.76% 
01-20-72-67204 Dues & Memberships $8,055 $7,450 $605  8.12% 
01-20-72-67208 Meetings, Travel, & Training $19,250 $19,250 $0  0.00% 
01-20-72-67234 Hiring Process $600 $400 $200  50.00% 



2017 Budget Draft               Appendix A: Summary of Accounts Page B 
 

Budget Budget Dollar Percent 
Account # Description 2017 2016 Change Change 

General Fund  - Administration Department Continued 
01-20-73-77301 Auditing Expense $23,022 $20,022 $3,000  14.98% 
01-20-73-77307 Engineering Expenses $19,000 $19,000 $0  0.00% 
01-20-73-77309 Village Planner $45,000 $40,000 $5,000  12.50% 
01-20-73-77311 Village Prosecutor $2,000 $0 $2,000  - 
01-20-73-77313 Legal Services $85,250 $77,750 $7,500  9.65% 
01-20-73-77314 Ord. Review - Legal $2,000 $3,000 ($1,000) (33.33%) 
01-20-73-77315 Economic Dev. Marketing $25,000 $20,000 $5,000  25.00% 
01-20-73-77319 Consultant Studies $50,000 $7,500 $42,500  566.67% 
01-20-74-77420 Village Publications $7,500 $7,500 $0  0.00% 
01-20-74-77430 Office Supplies $6,100 $6,314 ($214) (3.39%) 
01-20-74-77432 Postage $4,000 $4,286 ($286) (6.67%) 
01-20-74-77440 Printing $1,100 $1,100 $0  0.00% 
01-20-75-77511 Publications & Subscriptions $500 $500 $0  0.00% 
01-20-75-77512 Notification System $9,000 $9,000 $0  0.00% 
 01-20-75-77515  Garbage Collection $971,011 $971,192 ($181) (0.02%) 
01-20-75-77519 Risk Management Ins. Premium $186,079 $173,731 $12,348  7.11% 
01-20-75-77537 Legal Notices/Recording Fees $3,000 $2,990 $10  0.33% 
01-20-75-77541 SWALCO $7,758 $7,758 $0  0.00% 
01-20-77-77704 Special Events $6,250 $14,900 ($8,650) (58.05%) 
01-20-77-77706 Miscellaneous Expense $9,000 $8,720 $280  3.21% 
01-20-77-77710 Beautification Program $5,000 $5,000 $0  0.00% 
01-20-77-77716 Police & Fire Commission $6,675 $7,675 ($1,000) (13.03%) 
01-20-79-77901 B&G Maintenance $1,250 $3,750 ($2,500) (66.67%) 
01-20-79-77903 B&G Contracts $16,630 $14,948 $1,682  11.25% 
01-20-79-77905 B&G Repairs $4,750 $6,461 ($1,711) (26.48%) 
01-20-80-88018 Office Equipment $6,750 $6,485 $265  4.09% 
01-20-82-88202 Telephone Service $9,500 $8,940 $560  6.26% 
01-20-82-88204 Cellular Service $4,810 $4,560 $250  5.48% 
01-20-82-88208 Heating $500 $500 $0  0.00% 
01-20-91-99105 Network Repairs $3,500 $2,750 $750  27.27% 
01-20-91-99107 IT Maintenance Services $63,654 $88,551 ($24,897) (28.12%) 
01-20-91-99117 IT Equipment $5,000 $3,750 $1,250  33.33% 
01-20-91-99119 GIS Support $0 $7,500 ($7,500) (100.00%) 

Total Disbursements $2,133,389 $2,028,443 $104,946  5.17% 

General Fund  - Police Department 
01-40-70-67001 Regular Salaries $2,282,889 $2,122,126 $160,763  7.58% 
01-40-70-67021 Part-Time Salaries $82,870 $97,557 ($14,687) (15.05%) 
01-40-70-67031 Overtime $105,000 $104,000 $1,000  0.96% 
01-40-71-67101 IMRF $22,750 $20,000 $2,750  13.75% 
01-40-71-67107 Dental Insurance $21,100 $16,500 $4,600  27.88% 
01-40-71-67108 Vision Insurance $2,800 $2,250 $550  24.44% 
01-40-71-67109 Life Insurance $1,700 $1,650 $50  3.03% 
01-40-71-67110 Health Insurance $320,000 $263,000 $57,000  21.67% 
01-40-71-67111 Social Security $153,250 $144,500 $8,750  6.06% 
01-40-71-67112 Medicare $36,000 $34,000 $2,000  5.88% 
01-40-71-67116 Unemployment Insurance $2,500 $2,500 $0  0.00% 
01-40-72-67202 Uniforms $60,900 $59,350 $1,550  2.61% 
01-40-72-67204 Dues & Memberships $2,945 $2,965 ($20) (0.67%) 



2017 Budget Draft               Appendix A: Summary of Accounts Page C 
 

      
Budget Budget Dollar Percent 

Account # Description 2017 2016 Change Change 

General Fund  - Police Department  Continued 
01-40-72-67206 Medical/Psychological $1,000 $1,000 $0  0.00% 
01-40-72-67208 Meetings, Travel, & Training $40,210 $30,410 $9,800  32.23% 
01-40-72-67234 Hiring Process $17,692 $12,405 $5,287  42.62% 
01-40-73-77311 Village Prosecutor $55,000 $51,000 $4,000  7.84% 
01-40-73-77313 Legal Services $10,000 $10,000 $0  0.00% 
01-40-74-77402 Ammo / Guns $17,000 $17,300 ($300) (1.73%) 
01-40-74-77430 Office Supplies $6,000 $6,000 $0  0.00% 
01-40-74-77432 Postage $2,946 $2,946 $0  0.00% 
01-40-74-77434 Operating Supplies $2,500 $2,500 $0  0.00% 
01-40-74-77440 Printing $3,500 $3,500 $0  0.00% 
01-40-75-77501 MDT Lines $7,325 $7,325 $0  0.00% 
01-40-75-77503 Animal Control $1,200 $1,200 $0  0.00% 
01-40-75-77505 CenCom $286,675 $260,212 $26,463  10.17% 
01-40-75-77511 Publications & Subscriptions $13,279 $13,729 ($450) (3.28%) 
01-40-75-77525 Lake County MEG Membership $15,600 $15,000 $600  4.00% 
01-40-75-77531 NIPAS $9,169 $9,356 ($187) (2.00%) 
01-40-77-77706 Miscellaneous Expense $9,620 $3,120 $6,500  208.33% 
01-40-77-77710 Dare Fund Expenses $1,100 $1,100 $0  0.00% 
01-40-77-77712 Senate 740 Expenses $7,775 $9,775 ($2,000) (20.46%) 
01-40-77-77714 Federal Seizure Fund Expenses $6,500 $750 $5,750  766.67% 
01-40-77-77715 Computer Crime Expenses $0 $3,000 ($3,000) (100.00%) 
01-40-77-77720 Community Education $13,500 $1,000 $12,500  1250.00% 
01-40-77-77722 Bicycle Patrol Expenses $250 $250 $0  0.00% 
01-40-79-77901 B&G Maintenance $2,200 $1,200 $1,000  83.33% 
01-40-79-77903 B&G Contracts $14,590 $13,203 $1,387  10.51% 
01-40-79-77905 B&G Repairs $5,000 $5,000 $0  0.00% 
01-40-79-77907 B&G Supplies $2,000 $2,000 $0  0.00% 
01-40-80-88001 Equipment $13,000 $0 $13,000  - 
01-40-80-88018 Office Equipment $12,740 $9,637 $3,103  32.20% 
01-40-80-88024 Vehicles Equipment $35,000 $5,000 $30,000  600.00% 
01-40-82-88202 Telephone Service $3,400 $3,360 $40  1.19% 
01-40-82-88204 Cellular Service $6,600 $6,300 $300  4.76% 
01-40-82-88208 Heating $500 $500 $0  0.00% 
01-40-84-88402 Gas & Oil $65,000 $87,500 ($22,500) (25.71%) 
01-40-84-88404 Vehicle Repairs $28,000 $35,000 ($7,000) (20.00%) 
01-40-84-88406 Vehicle Maintenance $5,000 $5,000 $0  0.00% 
01-40-91-99105 Network Repairs $4,500 $4,500 $0  0.00% 
01-40-91-99107 IT Maintenance Services $61,977 $61,752 $225  0.36% 

Total Disbursements $3,882,052 $3,573,228 $308,824  8.64% 

General Fund  - Public Works Department 
01-60-70-67001 Regular Salaries $290,000 $316,000 ($26,000) (8.23%) 
01-60-70-67021 Part-Time Salaries $5,500 $2,500 $3,000  120.00% 
01-60-70-67026 Seasonal $5,500 $6,000 ($500) (8.33%) 

 
 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft               Appendix A: Summary of Accounts Page D 
 

 
 Budget Budget Dollar Percent 

Account # Description 2017 2016 Change Change 

General Fund  - Public Works Department  Continued 
01-60-70-67031 Overtime $25,000 $25,000 $0  0.00% 
01-60-71-67101 IMRF $33,000 $34,000 ($1,000) (2.94%) 
01-60-71-67107 Dental Insurance $3,350 $3,000 $350  11.67% 
01-60-71-67108 Vision Insurance $450 $425 $25  5.88% 
01-60-71-67109 Life Insurance $300 $325 ($25) (7.69%) 
01-60-71-67110 Health Insurance $65,000 $57,000 $8,000  14.04% 
01-60-71-67111 Social Security $21,000 $22,000 ($1,000) (4.55%) 
01-60-71-67112 Medicare $5,000 $5,250 ($250) (4.76%) 
01-60-72-67202 Uniforms $3,000 $2,826 $174  6.16% 
01-60-72-67204 Dues & Memberships $419 $310 $109  35.16% 
01-60-72-67206 Medical/Psychological $715 $415 $300  72.29% 
01-60-72-67208 Meeting, Travel, & Training $1,100 $3,500 ($2,400) (68.57%) 
01-60-72-67234 Hiring Process $600 $600 $0  0.00% 
01-60-73-77307 Engineering Expenses $17,000 $15,000 $2,000  13.33% 
01-60-73-77313 Legal Services $15,000 $5,000 $10,000  200.00% 
01-60-74-77418 Ice Control $116,600 $144,050 ($27,450) (19.06%) 
01-60-74-77430 Office Supplies $1,500 $1,500 $0  0.00% 
01-60-74-77432 Postage $75 $75 $0  0.00% 
01-60-74-77452 Street Signs $15,000 $5,000 $10,000  200.00% 
01-60-74-77458 Village Signs/Banners/Flags $3,000 $1,500 $1,500  100.00% 
01-60-75-77511 Publications & Subscriptions $150 $150 $0  0.00% 
01-60-75-77527 Lakes Management $500 $500 $0  0.00% 
01-60-75-77539 Street Sweeping $17,400 $17,400 $0  0.00% 
01-60-75-77543 Traffic Signal Maint. Contracts $15,000 $15,000 $0  0.00% 
01-60-79-77901 B & G Maintenance $5,000 $5,000 $0  0.00% 
01-60-79-77903 B & G Contracts $33,754 $5,070 $28,684  565.76% 
01-60-79-77905 B & G Repairs $95,775 $15,256 $80,519  527.79% 
01-60-79-77907 B & G Building Supplies $15,500 $12,000 $3,500  29.17% 
01-60-79-77911 Landscaping $34,000 $34,000 $0  0.00% 
01-60-80-88001 Equipment $43,000 $24,200 $18,800  77.69% 
01-60-80-88002 Safety Equipment $825 $750 $75  10.00% 
01-60-80-88018 Office Equipment $1,000 $1,000 $0  0.00% 
01-60-80-88024 Vehicle Equipment $18,500 $16,317 $2,183  13.38% 
01-60-82-88202 Telephone Service $3,000 $3,000 $0  0.00% 
01-60-82-88204 Cellular Service $2,220 $2,100 $120  5.71% 
01-60-82-88206 Electrical Service $2,000 $2,000 $0  0.00% 
01-60-82-88208 Heating $500 $500 $0  0.00% 
01-60-82-88216 Street Lights - Electrical $87,000 $87,000 $0  0.00% 
01-60-84-88402 Gas & Oil $22,000 $26,000 ($4,000) (15.38%) 
01-60-84-88404 Vehicle Repairs $25,000 $25,000 $0  0.00% 
01-60-84-88405 Equipment Repairs $17,000 $17,000 $0  0.00% 
01-60-84-88406 Vehicle Maintenance $3,000 $3,530 ($530) (15.01%) 
01-60-84-88408 Equipment Maintenance $3,000 $0 $3,000  - 
01-60-84-88412 Equipment Rental $1,500 $1,500 $0  0.00% 

 
 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft               Appendix A: Summary of Accounts Page E 
 

Budget Budget Dollar Percent 
Account # Description 2017 2016 Change Change 

General Fund  - Public Works Department  Continued 
01-60-91-99105 Network Repairs $1,500 $1,500 $0  0.00% 
01-60-91-99107 IT Maintenance Services $6,000 $1,500 $4,500  300.00% 
01-60-92-99210 Street Light Repairs $20,000 $20,000 $0  0.00% 
01-60-92-99214 Storm Sewer Maintenance $10,000 $10,000 $0  0.00% 

Total Disbursements $1,112,233 $998,549 $113,684  11.38% 

General Fund  - Building Department 
01-70-70-67001 Regular Salaries $182,000 $175,000 $7,000  4.00% 
01-70-70-67031 Overtime $2,000 $1,500 $500  33.33% 
01-70-71-67101 IMRF Expense $19,000 $17,500 $1,500  8.57% 
01-70-71-67107 Dental Insurance $1,750 $1,550 $200  12.90% 
01-70-71-67108 Vision Insurance $250 $250 $0  0.00% 
01-70-71-67109 Life Insurance $170 $170 $0  0.00% 
01-70-71-67110 Health Insurance $32,000 $31,500 $500  1.59% 
01-70-71-67111 Social Security $11,400 $11,000 $400  3.64% 
01-70-71-67112 Medicare $2,700 $2,600 $100  3.85% 
01-70-72-67202 Uniforms $510 $510 $0  0.00% 
01-70-72-67204 Dues & Memberships $225 $225 $0  0.00% 
01-70-72-67208 Meetings, Travel,  & Training $1,510 $1,510 $0  0.00% 
01-70-73-77305 Building Inspection Services $1,300 $1,300 $0  0.00% 
01-70-73-77307 Engineering Expenses $4,000 $5,000 ($1,000) (20.00%) 
01-70-73-77310 Plan Reviews $1,000 $750 $250  33.33% 
01-70-73-77313 Legal Expenses $1,500 $1,750 ($250) (14.29%) 
01-70-73-77321 Plumbing Inspector $10,000 $11,000 ($1,000) (9.09%) 
01-70-74-77430 Office Supplies $1,000 $1,000 $0  0.00% 
01-70-74-77432 Postage $250 $300 ($50) (16.67%) 
01-70-74-77440 Printing $100 $100 $0  0.00% 
01-70-75-77511 Publications & Subscriptions $150 $150 $0  0.00% 
01-70-75-77537 Legal Notices/Recording Fees $100 $100 $0  0.00% 
01-70-82-88202 Telephone Service $400 $600 ($200) (33.33%) 
01-70-82-88204 Cellular Service $1,200 $1,200 $0  0.00% 
01-70-84-88402 Gas & Oil $4,000 $4,500 ($500) (11.11%) 
01-70-84-88405 Vehicle Repairs $1,500 $1,500 $0  0.00% 
01-70-84-88406 Vehicle Maintenance $300 $300 $0  0.00% 
01-70-91-99105 Network Repairs $750 $1,000 ($250) (25.00%) 
01-70-91-99107 IT Maintenance Services $19,400 $778 $18,622  2393.57% 

Total Disbursements $300,465 $274,643 $25,822  9.40% 

General Fund  - Contributions and Transfers Out 
01-80-96-99626 Transfer to 2010 Debt Service $525,000 $525,000 $0  0.00% 
01-80-96-99635 Contribution to Capital Fund $325,000 $325,000 $0  0.00% 
01-80-96-99660 Contribution to Vehicle Replace. $217,000 $217,001 ($1) (0.00%) 
01-80-96-99661 Contribution to Tech. Replace. $70,841 $67,475 $3,366  4.99% 
01-80-96-99662 Contribution to Building Replace. $79,533 $80,404 ($871) (1.08%) 

Total Disbursements $1,217,374 $1,214,880 $2,494  0.21% 
 
 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft               Appendix A: Summary of Accounts Page F 
 

 
 Budget Budget Dollar Percent 

Account # Description 2017 2016 Change Change 

Motor Fuel Tax Fund 
10-05-52-55211 MFT Special Allotment $48,279 $48,146 $133  0.28% 
10-05-52-55213 Motor Fuel Tax $473,685 $435,278 $38,407  8.82% 
10-05-62-56201 CDBG Revenues $0 $85,000 ($85,000) (100.00%) 
10-05-64-56401 Interest Income $79 $450 ($371) (82.35%) 
10-05-65-56526 MacGillis Bridge Reimb. $123,000 $186,600 ($63,600) (34.08%) 

Total Receipts $645,043 $755,474 ($110,431) (14.62%) 
10-60-73-77307 Engineering Expenses $0 $500 ($500) (100.00%) 
10-60-74-77414 Gravel Expense $0 $7,500 ($7,500) (100.00%) 
10-60-74-77418 Ice Control $0 $3,000 ($3,000) (100.00%) 
10-60-74-77436 Crack Sealing $15,000 $76,775 ($61,775) (80.46%) 
10-60-74-77438 Pavement Marking $0 $19,000 ($19,000) (100.00%) 
10-60-78-77802 Labor / Equipment Reimb. to GF $0 $25,000 ($25,000) (100.00%) 
10-60-83-88301 Roadway Improvements $1,237,480 $1,215,252 $22,228  1.83% 
10-60-88-88802 Sidewalks $0 $15,000 ($15,000) (100.00%) 

Total Disbursements $1,252,480 $1,362,027 ($109,547) (8.04%) 

Bright Meadows SSA #1 Fund 
16-05-50-55001 Real Estate Taxes $23,730 $23,730 $0  0.00% 
16-05-64-56401 Interest Income $13 $63 ($50) (78.86%) 

Total Receipts $23,744 $23,793 ($50) (0.21%) 
16-20-73-77313 Legal Services $500 $500 $0  0.00% 
16-20-77-77706 Miscellaneous Expense $10 $10 $0  0.00% 
16-20-79-77911 Landscaping $31,840 $21,068 $10,772  51.13% 

Total Disbursements $32,350 $21,578 $10,772  49.92% 

2005 Debt Service Fund 
24-05-50-55003 Utility Tax Electric $0 $71,000 ($71,000) (100.00%) 
24-05-50-55007 Utility Tax Telephone $260,000 $255,000 $5,000  1.96% 
24-05-64-56401 Interest Income $7 $9 ($2) (25.58%) 

Total Receipts $260,007 $326,009 ($66,002) (20.25%) 
24-20-94-99426 2005 Refunding Bonds Int.  $21,806 $31,606 ($9,800) (31.01%) 
24-20-94-99428 2005 Refunding Bonds Principal $260,000 $245,000 $15,000  6.12% 
24-20-94-99432 Bond Admin & Disclosure Fees $550 $550 $0  0.00% 

Total Disbursements $282,356 $277,156 $5,200  1.88% 

2010 Debt Service Fund 
26-05-50-55005 Utility Tax - Gas $57,000 $11,750 $45,250  385.11% 
26-05-64-56401 Interest Income $5 $23 ($18) (77.47%) 
26-05-68-56801 Transfer From General $525,000 $525,000 $0  0.00% 

Total Receipts $582,005 $536,773 $45,232  8.43% 
26-20-94-99432 Bond Admin & disclosure Fees $1,250 $1,250 $0  0.00% 
26-20-94-99460 2010A Bond Interest  $390,975 $390,975 $0  0.00% 
26-20-94-99462 2010A Bond Debt Principal $50,000 $0 $50,000  - 
26-20-94-99464 2010B Bond Interest  $20,080 $23,160 ($3,080) (13.30%) 
26-20-94-99466 2010B Bond Debt Principal $115,000 $110,000 $5,000  4.55% 

Total Disbursements $577,305 $525,385 $51,920  9.88% 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft               Appendix A: Summary of Accounts Page G 
 
 

Budget Budget Dollar Percent 
Account # Description 2017 2016 Change Change 

2011 Debt Service Fund 
28-05-50-55003 Utility Tax Electric $355,000 $284,000 $71,000  25.00% 
28-05-50-55005 Utility Tax - Gas $38,000 $105,750 ($67,750) (64.07%) 
28-05-64-56401 Interest Income $1 $17 ($16) (92.21%) 

Total Receipts $393,001 $389,767 $3,234  0.83% 
28-20-82-88218 Senior Citizen Rebate $10,000 $10,000 $0  0.00% 
28-20-94-99432 Bond Admin & disclosure Fees $750 $750 $0  0.00% 
28-20-94-99470 2011 Bonds Principal $300,000 $290,000 $10,000  3.45% 
28-20-94-99472 2011 Bonds Interest $73,775 $81,025 ($7,250) (8.95%) 

Total Disbursements $384,525 $381,775 $2,750  0.72% 

Capital Projects Fund 
35-05-50-55005 Utility Tax - Gas $95,000 $117,500 ($22,500) (19.15%) 
35-05-58-55845 Contribution from General Fund $325,000 $325,000 $0  0.00% 
35-05-62-56200 Grants $0 $14,250 ($14,250) (100.00%) 
35-05-64-56401 Interest Income $139 $750 ($611) (81.49%) 
35-05-65-56548 Capital Proj. Reimbursement $5,000 $39,589 ($34,589) (87.37%) 

Total Receipts $425,139 $497,089 ($71,950) (14.47%) 
35-20-73-77307 Engineering Expenses $36,360 $106,921 ($70,561) (65.99%) 
35-20-73-77313 Legal Services $500 $500 $0  0.00% 
35-20-73-77319 Consultant Studies $32,000 $0 $32,000  - 
35-20-75-77517 Mosquito Management $30,000 $25,000 $5,000  20.00% 
35-20-80-88028 Urban Forest Management $135,000 $0 $135,000  - 
35-20-83-88301 Roadway Improvements $318,700 $410,065 ($91,365) (22.28%) 
35-20-86-88601 Land/Land Improvements $10,000 $0 $10,000  - 
35-20-88-88801 Other Enhancements $330,800 $245,000 $85,800  35.02% 

Total Disbursements $893,360 $787,486 $105,874  13.44% 

Water & Sewer Fund 
50-05-56-55603 Meter Etc. For Resale $2,500 $10,000 ($7,500) (75.00%) 
50-05-56-55604 LRSD User Fees $18,000 $16,500 $1,500  9.09% 
50-05-56-55627 W/S Maintenance Fee $1,790,000 $1,775,000 $15,000  0.85% 
50-05-56-55629 Water Fees $975,000 $950,000 $25,000  2.63% 
50-05-56-55631 Sewer Fees $1,150,000 $1,100,000 $50,000  4.55% 
50-05-56-55633 Excess Facility Charges $110,000 $105,000 $5,000  4.76% 
50-05-56-55637 W/S Penalties $75,000 $70,000 $5,000  7.14% 
50-05-64-56401 Interest Income $50,692 $50,359 $333  0.66% 
50-05-66-56601 Miscellaneous Receipts $1,500 $1,500 $0  0.00% 

Total Receipts $4,172,692 $4,078,359 $94,333  2.31% 
50-60-70-67001 Regular Salaries $506,000 $515,000 ($9,000) (1.75%) 
50-60-70-67021 Part-time Salaries $18,000 $10,750 $7,250  67.44% 
50-60-70-67026 Seasonal $5,500 $6,000 ($500) (8.33%) 
50-60-70-67031 Overtime $25,250 $25,000 $250  1.00% 
50-60-71-67101 IMRF Expense $55,000 $54,100 $900  1.66% 
50-60-71-67107 Dental Insurance $5,100 $4,200 $900  21.43% 

 
 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft               Appendix A: Summary of Accounts Page H 
 
 

Budget Budget Dollar Percent 
Account # Description 2017 2016 Change Change 

Water & Sewer Fund Continued 
50-60-71-67108 Vision Insurance $600 $550 $50  9.09% 
50-60-71-67109 Life Insurance $500 $490 $10  2.04% 
50-60-71-67110 Health Insurance $92,000 $79,000 $13,000  16.46% 
50-60-71-67111 Social Security $34,500 $34,600 ($100) (0.29%) 
50-60-71-67112 Medicare $8,100 $8,100 $0  0.00% 
50-60-72-67202 Uniforms $3,000 $3,000 $0  0.00% 
50-60-72-67204 Dues & Memberships $750 $700 $50  7.14% 
50-60-72-67206 Medical/Psychological $415 $415 $0  0.00% 
50-60-72-67208 Meeting, Travel, & Training $3,100 $4,500 ($1,400) (31.11%) 
50-60-72-67234 Hiring Process $600 $500 $100  20.00% 
50-60-73-77301 Auditing Expense $6,674 $6,875 ($201) (2.92%) 
50-60-73-77307 Engineering Expenses $18,000 $20,000 ($2,000) (10.00%) 
50-60-73-77313 Legal Services $46,250 $55,000 ($8,750) (15.91%) 
50-60-74-77428 Water Meters (MXU's) $130,350 $20,000 $110,350  551.75% 
50-60-74-77430 Office Supplies $2,000 $2,000 $0  0.00% 
50-60-74-77432 Postage Expense $32,000 $30,000 $2,000  6.67% 
50-60-75-77519 Risk Management Ins. Premium $65,360 $57,910 $7,450  12.86% 
50-60-75-77529 Metra Easements $1,575 $1,575 $0  0.00% 
50-60-75-77535 Outsourcing Water Bills $30,750 $30,750 $0  0.00% 
50-60-75-77537 Legal Notices $600 $1,000 ($400) (40.00%) 
50-60-75-77545 Water Meter Testing $5,000 $5,000 $0  0.00% 
50-60-75-77547 Water Samples $7,100 $7,100 $0  0.00% 
50-60-77-77740 RLSD Grant Reimb. $0 $7,260 ($7,260) (100.00%) 
50-60-79-77901 B&G Maintenance (CIP Items) $80,000 $3,338 $76,662  2296.64% 
50-60-79-77903 B&G Contracts $43,934 $16,081 $27,853  173.20% 
50-60-79-77905 B&G Repairs $14,000 $4,000 $10,000  250.00% 
50-60-79-77907 B&G Supplies $14,350 $7,500 $6,850  91.33% 
50-60-79-77911 Landscaping $9,400 $8,700 $700  8.05% 
50-60-80-88001 Equipment $24,243 $481,900 ($457,657) (94.97%) 
50-60-80-88002 Safety Equipment $1,500 $1,750 ($250) (14.29%) 
50-60-80-88018 Office Equipment $1,000 $1,000 $0  0.00% 
50-60-80-88024 Vehicle Equipment $2,500 $2,500 $0  0.00% 
50-60-81-88101 Water/Sewer Improvements $2,934,338 $1,153,120 $1,781,218  154.47% 
50-60-82-88202 Telephone Charges $2,850 $2,760 $90  3.26% 
50-60-82-88204 Cellular Service $2,800 $2,225 $575  25.84% 
50-60-82-88206 Electrical Service $55,000 $52,000 $3,000  5.77% 
50-60-82-88208 Heating $5,051 $5,019 $32  0.64% 
50-60-82-88210 JAWA Expense $1,093,000 $1,093,000 $0  0.00% 
50-60-82-88212 Lake County Sewer $1,150,000 $1,100,000 $50,000  4.55% 
50-60-82-88214 Excess Facility Charges $110,000 $105,000 $5,000  4.76% 
50-60-84-88402 Gas & Oil $23,000 $23,466 ($466) (1.99%) 
50-60-84-88404 Vehicle Repairs $20,000 $20,000 $0  0.00% 
50-60-84-88405 Equipment Repairs $10,000 $10,000 $0  0.00% 
50-60-84-88406 Vehicle Maintenance $3,500 $3,500 $0  0.00% 

 
 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft               Appendix A: Summary of Accounts Page I 
 
 

Budget Budget Dollar Percent 
Account # Description 2017 2016 Change Change 

Water & Sewer Fund Continued 
50-60-84-88408 Equipment Maintenance $1,000 $1,000 $0  0.00% 
50-60-84-88410 Radio Read System $4,000 $4,000 $0  0.00% 
50-60-84-88412 Equipment Rental $1,000 $1,000 $0  0.00% 
50-60-90-99005 J.U.L.I.E. $2,500 $2,706 ($206) (7.61%) 
50-60-91-99101 SCADA Maintenance $17,500 $8,505 $8,995  105.76% 
50-60-91-99105 Network Repairs $1,000 $800 $200  25.00% 
50-60-91-99107 IT Maintenance Services $17,000 $15,000 $2,000  13.33% 
50-60-91-99117 IT Equipment $8,350 $7,500 $850  11.33% 
50-60-92-99202 Repairs to Sewers $6,000 $6,000 $0  0.00% 
50-60-92-99204 Repair to Water Lines $30,000 $29,070 $930  3.20% 
50-60-92-99206 Repairs Pumps / Telemet $0 $32,000 ($32,000) (100.00%) 
50-60-92-99208 Repairs to Pumps/Lift Stations $93,700 $22,000 $71,700  325.91% 
50-60-94-99418 2010C Bonds Principal $115,000 $115,000 $0  0.00% 
50-60-94-99420 2010C Bonds Interest $20,458 $23,333 ($2,875) (12.32%) 
50-60-94-99432 Bond Admin & Disclosure Fees $600 $700 ($100) (14.29%) 
50-80-96-99660 Contribution to Vehicle Repl. $98,450 $98,540 ($90) (0.09%) 
50-80-96-99661 Contribution to Technology Repl. $18,454 $18,909 ($455) (2.41%) 
50-80-96-99662 Contribution to Building Repl. $22,770 $16,216 $6,554  40.42% 

Total Disbursements $7,162,322 $5,490,513 $1,671,809  30.45% 

Commuter Parking Lot Fund 
51-05-56-55625 Parking Lot Income $75,000 $84,000 ($9,000) (10.71%) 
51-05-64-56401 Interest Income $37 $178 ($141) (79.13%) 

Total Receipts $75,037 $84,178 ($9,141) (10.86%) 
51-60-73-77307 Engineering Expenses $750 $750 $0  0.00% 
51-60-73-77313 Legal Services $500 $500 $0  0.00% 
51-60-74-77434 Operating Supplies $750 $750 $0  0.00% 
51-60-74-77440 Printing $600 $600 $0  0.00% 
51-60-74-77452 Street Signs $500 $500 $0  0.00% 
51-60-75-77507 Commuter Parking Rent $4,800 $4,800 $0  0.00% 
51-60-77-77706 Miscellaneous Expense $2,884 $2,852 $32  1.12% 
51-60-79-77903 B&G Contracts $23,500 $23,500 $0  0.00% 
51-60-79-77905 B&G Repairs $1,250 $1,000 $250  25.00% 
51-60-79-77911 Landscaping $9,500 $7,500 $2,000  26.67% 
51-60-79-77915 Parking Lot Maintenance $5,000 $5,000 $0  0.00% 
51-60-82-88206 Electrical Service $6,000 $6,000 $0  0.00% 
51-60-86-88601 Land/Land Improvements $215,200 $233,000 ($17,800) (7.64%) 

Total Disbursements $271,234 $286,752 ($15,518) (5.41%) 

Vehicle Replacement Fund 
60-05-58-55845 Contribution from General $217,000 $217,001 ($1) (0.00%) 
60-05-58-55850 Contribution from Water/Sewer $98,450 $98,450 $0  0.00% 
60-05-64-56401 Interest Income $15 $81 ($66) (82.00%) 

Total Receipts $315,465 $315,532 ($67) (0.02%) 
 
 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft               Appendix A: Summary of Accounts Page J 
 

 
 Budget Budget Dollar Percent 

Account # Description 2017 2016 Change Change 

Vehicle Replacement Fund Continued 
60-40-80-88001 Equipment $18,000 $0 $18,000  - 
60-40-80-88004 Vehicles $84,036 $108,784 ($24,748) (22.75%) 
60-40-80-88024 Vehicle Equipment $15,450 $18,713 ($3,263) (17.44%) 
60-60-80-88001 Equipment $0 $30,000 ($30,000) (100.00%) 
60-60-80-88004 Vehicles $269,537 $262,000 $7,537  2.88% 
60-60-80-88024 Vehicle Equipment $60,000 $0 $60,000  - 
60-70-80-88004 Vehicles $0 $22,000 ($22,000) (100.00%) 

Total Disbursements $447,023 $441,497 $5,526  1.25% 

Technology Replacement Fund 
61-05-58-55845 Contribution from General $70,841 $67,475 $3,366  4.99% 
61-05-58-55850 Contribution from Water/Sewer $18,454 $18,909 ($455) (2.41%) 
61-05-60-56010 State Seizures $15,000 $15,000 $0  0.00% 
61-05-64-56401 Interest Income $17 $80 ($63) (78.25%) 

Total Receipts $104,312 $101,464 $2,848  2.81% 
61-20-91-99103 Computer Upgrades/Software $85,000 $0 $85,000  - 
61-20-91-99117 IT Equipment $24,000 $5,500 $18,500  336.36% 
61-40-80-88024 Vehicle Equipment $25,000 $0 $25,000  - 
61-40-91-99117 IT Equipment $13,700 $51,200 ($37,500) (73.24%) 
61-60-91-99117 IT Equipment $11,000 $41,000 ($30,000) (73.17%) 
61-70-91-99117 IT Equipment $4,000 $1,500 $2,500  166.67% 

Total Disbursements $162,700 $99,200 $63,500  64.01% 

Building Replacement Fund 
62-05-58-55845 Contribution from General $79,533 $80,404 ($871) (1.08%) 
62-05-58-55850 Contribution from Water/Sewer $22,770 $16,216 $6,554  40.42% 
62-05-64-56401 Interest Income $33 $116 ($83) (71.95%) 

Total Receipts $102,336 $96,736 $5,600  5.79% 
62-20-80-88001 Equipment $10,000 $45,000 ($35,000) (77.78%) 
62-20-80-88018 Office Equipment $7,500 $7,500 $0  0.00% 
62-20-85-88501 Building Improvements $73,000 $40,208 $32,792  81.56% 
62-40-80-88001 Equipment $0 $10,000 ($10,000) (100.00%) 
62-40-80-88018 Office Equipment $5,000 $0 $5,000  - 
62-40-85-88501 Building Improvements $30,000 $15,000 $15,000  100.00% 
62-60-80-88001 Equipment $31,000 $10,000 $21,000  210.00% 
62-60-80-88018 Office Equipment $5,000 $2,500 $2,500  100.00% 
62-60-85-88501 Building Improvements $16,500 $2,500 $14,000  560.00% 
62-70-80-88018 Office Equipment $5,000 $2,500 $2,500  100.00% 

Total Disbursements $183,000 $135,208 $47,792  35.35% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2017 Budget Draft               Appendix A: Summary of Accounts Page K 
 
 

Budget Budget Dollar Percent 
Account # Description 2017 2016 Change Change 

Police Pension Fund 
70-05-50-55001 Real Estate Taxes $453,914 $447,750 $6,164  1.38% 
70-05-58-55801 Police Officer Contributions $190,000 $180,000 $10,000  5.56% 
70-05-64-56401 Interest Income $60,000 $65,000 ($5,000) (7.69%) 
70-05-64-56417 Realized Gains (net) $25,000 $5,000 $20,000  400.00% 
70-05-64-56425 Dividend Income $50,000 $30,000 $20,000  66.67% 
70-05-66-56601 Miscellaneous Receipts $100 $250 ($150) (60.00%) 

Total Receipts $779,014 $728,000 $51,014  7.01% 
70-20-70-67050 Retirement Benefits $254,700 $247,200 $7,500  3.03% 
70-20-70-67055 Disability Benefits $91,900 $87,800 $4,100  4.67% 
70-20-70-67056 Surviving Spouse $29,496 $29,496 $0  0.00% 
70-20-70-67057 Refund of Contributions $5,000 $5,000 $0  0.00% 
70-20-72-67204 Dues & Memberships $800 $800 $0  0.00% 
70-20-72-67206 Medical / Psychological $5,000 $5,000 $0  0.00% 
70-20-72-67208 Meetings, Travel, & Training $4,250 $4,250 $0  0.00% 
70-20-73-77301 Auditing Expense $1,875 $1,850 $25  1.35% 
70-20-73-77313 Legal Services $10,000 $10,000 $0  0.00% 
70-20-73-77325 Actuarial Services $2,500 $2,000 $500  25.00% 
70-20-73-77331 Accounting Services $18,000 $0 $18,000  - 
70-20-74-77430 Office Supplies $350 $350 $0  0.00% 
70-20-74-77432 Postage $100 $100 $0  0.00% 
70-20-90-99001 Bank/Investment Fees $24,000 $23,500 $500  2.13% 
70-20-90-99003 DOI Compliance Fee $1,250 $1,200 $50  4.17% 

Total Disbursements $449,221 $418,546 $132,703  31.71% 
 


	2016_03_21_COTW_Agenda
	2016_02_29_COTW_Minutes
	Public Works Surplus Items
	03-21-16 AIS Public Works Surplus Item - Tractor
	03-21-16 AIS Public Works Surplus Item - Tractor - Support Doc 1
	03-21-16 AIS Public Works Surplus Item - Tractor - Support Doc 2

	Second CLCJAWA Receiving Structure Design
	03-21-16 AIS 2nd JAWA Rec. Struct. Report
	03-21-16 AIS 2nd JAWA Rec. Struct. Report - Support Doc

	LCML Crack Sealing Bid
	LCML Street Sweeping Bid
	LCML Pavement Marking Bid
	LCML Hydrant Painting BId
	Sewer Rates
	03.21.16 AIS Sewer Rates
	Sewer Rate Letter
	Amending Village Code Water and Sewer Rates

	2017 CAPITAL PLAN.pdf
	03.21.16 Capital Improvements Plan AIS
	Capital Plan 2017 2022
	Capital Plan Resolution 2017 thru 2022

	2017 BUDGET.pdf
	03.21.16 2017 Draft Budget
	FYE 2017 Budget Draft Memorandum


